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April 17. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into a SoleSourceamendmentto an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor#: 177575-
8001), Contoocook, NH for continued Care Management Entity services and Enhanced Care
Coordination through the Families and Systems Together Forward program, by increasing the price
limitation by $2,300,000 from $5,652,160 to $7,952,160 and by extending the completion date from
June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 90%
General. 10% Federal Funds (ARPA).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item #398,
amended on September 20,2018, item #20, amended on June 10, 2020, item #11, amended June
2,2021, item #31, and most recently amended on June 29, 2022, item #21,

Funding is anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024
and 2025, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the completion
date beyond the one (1) year available renewal option and add funding. The Contractor was originally
selected using a competitive bid process and has been providing Intensive Care Coordination
services since 2016 for children and youth aged 5-21 and recently adding coordinated services for
children ages 0-4. The Contractor therefore is uniquely qualified to continue providing coordinated
services, statewide, to populations with Serious Emotional Disturbance (SED). The Contractor
provides the Care Management Entity model by coordinating and streamlining the essential services
for families with a child (ages 0-21) that has an SED and/or at risk for SED. This is a nationally
recognized approach for senring children with a SED.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide Care Management
Entity services and Enhanced Care Coordination to families with youth ages zero (0) through six (6)
who have serious emotional disturbance and a history of high utilization of behavioral health services.
This will allow for care to be administered to children, youth, and young adults ages 0-21.
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Approximately 650 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.

FAST Fonward is a unique program in New Hampshire to serve qualifying children and youth
with a diagnosis of SED. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can l>e
served in their home communities, while living,in their natural homes and attending their community's
school program. Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, increased positive social,
academic, and behavioral outcomes, decreased out of home, school, and community placements,
increased caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain, and access to programs and supports
tailored to each child and family's culture, strengths, and goals.

The Department will monitor services using the following performance measures:
•  95% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive the Child and

Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment tool, which is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Forward engagements.

•  80% of children, youth and young adults and their families are assessed using the Youth
Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools.

•  100% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive completed plans of
care in FAST Forward, Transitional Residential Enhance Care Coordination, and the
Early Chjldhood Enhanced Care Coordination.

•  95% of child, youth and young adults and their families are assessed using the Child
Well-Being Scale while enrolled in the Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination
program.

As referenced in Amendment #2 to the contract, the parties have the option to extend the
agreement for up to three (3) additional years,^htingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is
exercising its option to renew services for the remaining one (1) year available, and extend services
for one (1) additional year beyond the available renewal option.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, families with children and youth
who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available to them in their
communities to meet the challenges presented by mental illness. Further, the Department may be
out of compliance with RSA 135:F. RSA 135: F, which is statutorily in effect to increase service
effectiveness and improve outcomes for children with behavioral health challenges and their
caretakers.

Area sen/ed: Statevride.

Source of Federal Funds: 90% General Funds. 10% Federal Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seroiees'Mission isto)6in communities andfaniiiies
in prooiding opportunities (or citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95.92.921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR
CHILDRENS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. SYSTEM OF CARE

90% General Funds. 10% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2018 072-509073 Contracts for Program Services 92102100 $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 62102053 $91,160.00 $0.00 $91,160.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for.Progfam Services 62102053 $420,000.00 $0.00 $420,000.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62102053 $785,000.00 $0.00 $785,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62102053. $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

2024 102-500731" Contracts for Program Services 62102053 $0.00 $1,150,000.00 $1,150,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62102053 ' $0.00 $1,150,000.00 $1,150,000.00

Sub Total $4,752,160.00 $2,300,000.00 $7,052,160.00

05.95-094-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, D.EPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: NEW
HAMPSHIRE 90% General Funds. 10% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH951 $128,500.00 $0.00 $128,500.00

2023 102-500731

Contracts for Program Services

00FRF602PH951

1A
$771,500.00

$0.00

$771,500.00

Sub Total $900,000.00 $0.00 $900,000.00

TOTAL! $5.652.160.00! $2.300.000.001 $7.952.1 SO.o'ol

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: l-BOO-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

March 22, 2023

Lori Weaver, Cpmmissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
95 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Infonnation Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with NFI North, Inc., as described
below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-069E.

The purpose of this request is for continued Care Management Entity services and
Enhanced Care Coordination through the Families and Systems Together Forward
program.

The Total Price Limitation will increase by $2,300,000 for a new Total Price Limitation of
$7,952,160, effective upon Governor and Council approval from July 1,2023 through June
30, 2025.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission

to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DoIT #2018-069E

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment US

This Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
NFI North, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #39B), as amended on September 20, 2018 (Item #20), as amended on June 10,
2020, (Item #11), as amended June 2, 2021 (Item #31), and as amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #21), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$7,952,160

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #4 Methods and Conditions "Precedent to Payment, Section 2, to
. read:

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. 90% General funds.

2.2. 10% Other Funds American Rescue Plan Act (Arpa) As Awarded From The
Governor's Office For Emergency Relief And Recovery (GOFERR), ARP FRF funds
under Section 602 (c)(1)(A).

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
subsection 3.5, to read:

3.5. For FAST Fonward Program services provided to individuals that are not billable to other
Insurance or payors, or Medicaid, the Contractor shall bill using the budget line item listed as
Billing for Uninsured as specified In Exhibit B-8 Budget, Amendment #5 and Exhibit B-9
Budget, Amendment #5 as folllows:

3.5.1 .The Contractor shall only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the Medicaid
eligible services provided. The current Medicaid rate will be paid in accordance with the
current, publically posted Children's Mental Health HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule.

3.5.2. The Contractor's billings to the Department shall be made monthly and are not to exceed
the Billing for Uninsured line item as specified in Exhibit B-8 Budget, Amendment #5 .
and Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5.

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01 -AOS 4/10/202 3
Page 1 of 4 Date
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6. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #4. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
subsection 3.6, to read:

3.6. For the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified in Exhibit B-8 SFY 2024
Budget, Amendment #5 and Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5, the Contractor shall bill and
seek reimbursement for services provided to individuals pursuant to this Agreement as
follows:

3.6.1. For Psychiatric Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate of $70.00
per day up to a five day maximum per hospitalization billable for the length of
enrollment.

3.6.2. For Residential Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate of $70.00
per day up to a three day maximum per week for the length of enrollment.

3.6.3. For Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination services, the Contractor shall be paid
a daily rate of $70.00 per day up to a three day maximum per week for the length of
enrollment.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
subsection 3.7, to read:

3.7. The Contractor's billings to the Department shall be made monthly, and are not to exceed the
Billing for Uninsured line item, as specified in Exhibit B-8 SFY 2024 Budget, Amendment #5
and Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5.

1. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, to
read:

4. Except for the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified. Exhibit B-8 SFY
2024 Budget, Amendment #5 and Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5 shall be on a cost
reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement,
which shall not exceed the approved line items specified in Exhibit B-8 SFY 2024 Budget,
Amendment #5 and Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5. Invoicing for these line items of
the approved budget shall be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in
fulfillment of this agreement.

2. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

3. Add Exhibit B-9 Budget, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A05 4/10/2023
Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/10/2023

Date

^OocuSlgntd by:

S'
—Fr>or>ft^R04f:gn<?

Name: Katja s. fox

Title: ^
Director

4/10/2023

Date

NFI North Inc.
OocuSlgnsd by:

I fffJuL PiWMA,
V—BAS2B9030E&440E...

Name: Paul oann

Title:
Executive Director

NFI North. Inc.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01 -AOS

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Oo»Skgn*d by:

4/11/2023

OocuSkgn*d by:

Date Name; Robyn cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment.was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A05 Page 4 of 4
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Can hUntomant EmSy S«rvic«9 tor FAST FewM ExJilbtt S-«. AfntnOnanl f S. SFY 2024 Bud9«t

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Centricter Name: NFI NorSi. Inc.

Prefect title: Care Management EntliY Setvicea t«r FAST Forward

Budget Period: SFY 2024 (7/l/20)-anOt?O24>

Urtt Rent

Total Proeram Cost Contractor Share 1 Match Funded by 0HH3 conireei sttare
Direct Indlrtel Total Otrect Indirect Total

1. Total Salaryrwages 33.6S4.S11S0 S3SS 951.28 54.051.484.08 53 884.512.80 5380,851.28 54 031.404.00 520.000.00
2. Employee Benefits Sgi7427.M S91.742.80 51 008.170.79 5917 427.88 581.742.80 51.009.170.79
3. Consulants s- 5- S- V V
4. EatAomeni: V V s- 5- 5-

Rental »44,SOO.OO S4.4M.00 549.060.00 544 800.00 54.400.00 548,000,00
Rettali and Mafnlnnannii V s- S- 5- s-
Purehase^oredation 102 000 00 58.200,00 508.200.00 582.000.00 50.200.00 SM.200 00

5, Supplies: '  %■ V 5- 5- 5-
Eduealienat US.iOO.OO 54.550 00 S50.OSO.00 545 500.00 54.550.00 550.050.00
lab s- 5- V 5- 5- 5.
Pfiarmacv s- S- 5- »■ S~
Medical s- 5- 5- 5- V
Office sei.000.00 SO.IOO.OO 587 100.00 501.000.00 50 100.00 507.100.00

5. Travel tS2I.OOO.OO S52.I01.00 SS73.10I.00 5501.000.00 550.101.00 5551.101.00 520.000.00
7, Occuoanev SIOS.OSS.OO S13.897.eO 5153.853.00 5125.800.00 512.507.00 5138.453.00 514.080.00 51.410.00 515500.00
a. Cunem Emenses V V V V V

Teleeltene SS4.SO0.00 S8 450.00 582.950.00 584 500.00 58.450.00 592.950.00
Posteae S? 000.00 5200.00 52.200.00 52.000.00 5200.00 52.200.00
Subscriptions s- s- 5- V V
Audit and Leoal V V 5- 5- $■ V
Insurartca $32,802.00 53.280.20 530 082.20 532.802.00 53,280,20 530.082.20
Beard Expenses s- »■ 5- 5- S- V

9. Software S8.000.00 5800.00 58.800.00 58 000.00 5800.00 58.800.00
10. Marketimj/Communlestiens St8.000.00 $1,800.00 519 800 00 518.000.00 51.800.00 518.800.00
11. sun Education and TiaMnn S1.279.200.00 SI27 920 00 51.407.120.00 51 104 200.00 5110 420 00 51 214.820.00 5175.000.00 517500.00
12. SuticontraetVAorsemenis SS 872.914.00 5807251.40 58.539.785.40 58.172 514.00 5807.251.40 89 039.785.40
13. Other (spodfic itetaRs mandatond: s- $- 5- 5- »- 5- V
Flex hinds oirter rSent exneme 8490.500.00 549.050.00 5539.550.00 5490.500.00 549 050.00 5539.550.00
BSBno lor Uninsured S400.000.C0 $■ 5400.000.00 5- 5-

»- S- 5- »• 5- 5- V 5- s-
TOTAL S18.48S.8t2.7S St.804,8S4.28 • 511.OU.347.07 515,334.422.78 5IU3.»44Jt 518.815.317.07 51.128.080.00 528.810.00 51,150.000.00

NF1 NarUi. Inc.
RFP.201SOeH.02K:AREAM)1.A0$
ExMM B4. Amendment «S, SFY 2024 Budoet
Page I o( 1

Comrnclor Wtato^y^/2 02 3
Date
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ExhlM B-<. Am«mlmtRl t$. SPY 202S Butfgat

N*w Hampshirt Oapartment of Health and Human Sarvtees

Contrector Nam«: NFI Nenti. Inc.

Projact Tide Can Manaoatnanl Enllry Servicat >w Ftti Poiward

Buapct Pariod: SPY MZS (7>ei/Ii4aonS)

Total Prooram Coet Centraclsr Share r Match Funded by DHHS eentract there
Lirta Hem Direct hdlract Total Dincl Indirecl Total . Dinct Tetal

1. Total SalarylWagai S  3.e32.S93.31 9 3S1 609.33 9 4.214.202.64 6 3 611 093.31 9 361.600.33 9 4 192 702.64 9 21.500.00 j 9  21.500.00
2. FmolovaaBaflatlti S  917.429.00 9 91.742.60 9 1,009,170.60 9 917,426.00 9 01.742.60 9 1.009.170.60
1. Comtrilanti S 9 . 9 9 9 }

*. Eeuhmant: } 9 9 . 9 9 )

Rantal t  44.900.00 9 4 400.00 9 49,060.00 9 44.600.00 9 4.460.00 9 49.000.00 1

Reoair and Mahlananea t 9 9  ■ 9 9 1

Purtfiaso/DannRiatinn }  92.000.00 9 6 200 00 9 66.200.00 9 62.000.00 9 6.200.00 9 66.200.00 j

S. SuDoles: t 9 9 - 9 9
Educational i  2$.}00.00 9 2SSO.OO 9 26.050.00 9 25 500.00 9 2,550.00 9 26.050.00 1

l.ab } 9 9 9 9
PItamacv 9 9 9 9 9

. Medical 9 -i 9 9 . 9
Otfica S  91.000.00 9 6100.00 9 67 100.00 9 61 000.00 9 6.100.00 9 67,100.00 }

6. Travel 9  S31.000.00 9 53101.00 9 564.101.00 9 501.000.00 9 50.10t.00 9 551.101.00 9 30000.00 9  3.000.00 9  33.000.00
7. Occuoancv 9  139 959.00 9 13.997.60 9 153 953.00 9 125,666.00 9 12.567.60 9 136.453.60 9 14.09040 9  1410.00

S. Current Exoemes 9 9 9 9 . 9 j

Teteohone 9  94,500.00 9 6.450.00 9 92.950.00 9 84.500.00 9 6.450.00 9 02.950.00 j

Posiaoa 9  2 000.00 9 200.00 9 2 200.00 9 2,000.00 9 200.00 9 2.200.00
Subsehotlons 9 9 9 . 9 . 9 9
Auda end Leoal 9 9 9 . 9 . 9 j

hwranca 9  39.092.20 9 3.608.22 9 39.690.42 9 36 0S2J0 9 3.606.22 9 30,690.42 j

Board Evaensos 9 9 9 . 1 . 9 «

9. doftware 9  19 000 00 9 i.eoo.oo 9 19 600.00 9 16.000.00 9 1.600.00 9 10.600.00 1

to. Marlietlna'CetnrTtuttieatlorti 9  29.000.00 9 2.600.00 9 30.600.00 9 26.000.00 9 2.600.00 9 30.600.00 )

11. Suff Education and Trahho 9  1.304.200.00 9 130,420.00 9 1.434.620.00 5 1.104.200.00 9 110 420 00 9 1.214.620.00 9 200 000.00 9  20.000.00 9  220 000.00
12. Sutieontracti/Aoraements 9  9972.514.00 9 667.251.40 9 9 539.765.40 6 6,172,514.00 9 687 251.40 9 0.030.765.40 9 500.00040
13. Other (5t>ecilicdeiahrTrand8torv): 9 9 9 9 . 9 j

Flex fun(n..olher <Senl experse 9  490.500.00 9 49.050.00 9 539.550.00 9 490 500.00 6 40 050.00 9 539.550.00
BIBina for Unlnsiaed 9  390.000.00 9 9 300 000.00 9 5 . 9 . 9 360.000.00 j

9 9 5 9 5 5 9 . j

9 9 9 5 6 9 9 I

9 9 9 9 9 9 9 1

9 9 9 9 9 . 9 . 9 . s

TOTAL ' 9  19,909,173.91 9 1,123,940.16 9 16.233.213.66 6 1S,464.2U,S1 9 • .  1,696.030.}5 9 ■ 17,063,21346 9 1,125,690.00 9  ■ 24,410.00 9  1,160,000.00

indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.8%

Nn North, he.

RPP-20I6-OBH^AREM4|.AO$

&<t)IM B-S. AmandmerM * S. SPY 202} BuOgal
Paga I of 1
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretar)' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0006194699

IB.

A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Dellie Champagne ^ . hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NFI North. Inc.
{Corporation/LLC. Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 28 . 2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting. (Date)

VOTED: That Paul L Dann. PhD. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of NFI North. Inc; to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

o,o„o, ■ - M/'g ChmpmeDated: 3/23/23 wiitchamptgA* (M»f v)t^oo-.o2 edt)

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dellie Champagne
Title: Clerk/Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/D0(YYYY)

12/23/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

NAMEt®^ Susan Kania
855 874-0123 781-376-5035

a^Hess; Susan.Kania@usi.com
INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B ; North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C:

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY-HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
uisa

SUBR
POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
mWDOrtYYY)

POLICY EXP
(mm/do/yyyy) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2501458 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE

ISES 7£a oca^rencel
MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POUCY I I JEcf I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea BcddenO

>1.000.000

>1.000.000

>5.000

>1,000,000

>3,000,000

>3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2501471 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 si,OOP,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

^omp $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per pereon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

Coll $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddenil

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LtAB

•DED

(XCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB845341 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE >10.000.000

AGGREGATE >10.000.000

X RETENTION >10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

/ 4067386425 07/01/2022 07/01/2023

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? ^
(Mandatory In NH)

V PER
jL STATUTE

OTH-
ER

N(A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT >1.000.000

E-L- DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
if yes, desoibe under
DESCRIPTION OF 01OP

>1.000.000

ERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT >1,000.000

Professional

Abuse

PHPK2501458

PHPK2501458

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

1MIU3MIL

1MIU3MIL

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addltlorul RemarXs Schedule, may be attached if more space It required]

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Oept Health & Human Services;

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
.#S38459618/M38441061

IE> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
LBPZP
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their
own home and community
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT

Board of Directors
NFI North, Inc.

Stoneham, Massachusetts

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NFI North, Inc. as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance vyith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of NFI North, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

CLA (CliftonLflfsonAllen LLP) is ftn independent network member of CLA Global. Sec;

(1)



DociiSign Envelope ID: 4FEB9B8C-7790-4417-846C-5191C81018CF

Board of Directors

NFl North, Inc.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about \A/hether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is, a high level of assurance but Is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, oh a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFl North, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

i expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NFl North, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 7,
2022, on our consideration of NFl North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of NFl North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report Is an Integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards in considering NFl
North, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(2)
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Other Matters

As discussed in Note 1, during the year ended June 30, 2022, NFI North, Inc. adopted Accounting
Standards Update No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Presentation and Disclosures by
Not-for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
October 7, 2022

(3)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents $ 3,662,016
Accounts receivable, net 7,381,539
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 133,045
Due from affiliate (note 10) 106,738
Investments (note 4) 3,387,522

Total current assets 14,670,860

Property and equipment:
Land 707,981
Buildings and improvements 10,476,850
Equipment and furnishings 697,547
Motor vehicles 1,004,000

12,886,378

Less accumulated depreciation (6,192,752)
Property and equipment, net 6,693,626

Lease right-of-use assets 153,313
Other assets 22,098

Total assets _^__21^539^89^

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5) $ 140,821
Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6) 73,394
Accounts payable 10,429
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 1,747,789
Other accrued expenses 792,098
Deferred revenue 435,742

Total current liabilities 3,200,273

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5) 2,539,444
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6) 71,212

Total long-term liabilities 2,610,656

Total liabilities 5,810,929

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 15,403,149
With donor restrictions 325,819

Total net assets 15,728,968

Total liabilities and net assets $ 21,539,897

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2022

Changes in- net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenues and other support:

Contracts, net
Contributions:

Contributed nonfinancial assets

Other

Interest and dividends

Miscellaneous

Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenues and other support

Expenses:
Program services
Supporting services {note 10)

Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities

Nonoperating activities:
Net realized and unrealized loss on investments

Gain on sale of property and equipment
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and grants
Net assets released from restrictions

Increase In net assets with donor restrictions

Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

$ 38.481,236

1,062.350

37,119

100,181
4,338

39,685,224
117,505

39,802,729

31,195,105

3,786,438
34,981,543

4,821,186

(484,082)
385,944

4,723,048

200,249
(117,505)

82,744

4,805.792

10,923,176

$  15,728,968

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(5)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR END JUNE 30, 2022

Personnel expenses:
Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits

Other expenses:
Contracted services

Other direct costs

Contributed nonfinanclal assets

Consumables

Occupancy
Equipment
Transportation

Interest •

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Program Supporting
services services Total

$  21,831,219 $  1,865,766 $  23,696,985

3,698,699 1,596,783 5,295,482

1,477,603 191,435 1,669,038

1,062,350 - 1,062,350

966,147 - 966,147

832,400 26,301 858,701

218,885 43,076 261,961

376,154 19,021 395,175

91,662 5,129 96,791

8,723,900 .  1,881,745 10,605,645

639,986 38,927 678,913

$ 31,195,105 $  3,786,438 $ 34,981,543

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(6)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets $ 4.805,792
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 678,913
Gain on sale of property and equipment (385,944)
Net realized and unrealized loss on investment 484,082
Amortization of right-of-use asset (103,120)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net (3,472,401)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,268)
Due from affiliate (22,549)
Other assets (9,606)
Accounts payable (55,352)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (68,892)
Other accrued expenses (16,600)
Due to affiliate (202,303)
Deferred revenue 229,744

Operating lease liabilities 94,413
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,954,909

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (2,938,683)
Purchases of investments (1,700,427)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 694,668
Proceeds from sale of investments ' 1,138,914

Net cash used in investing activities (2,805,528)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of long-term debt 600,000
Repayments of long-term debt (358,951)

Net cash provided by financing activities 241,049

Net decrease in cash and equivalents (609,570)

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 4,271,586

Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 3,662,016

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest $ 96,791

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a nonprofit organization whose purpose is to provide community-
based social services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North
American Family Institute. Inc. (NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of
directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are derived from services contracted with the
States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human Services, Children, Youth and
Families, Medicaid, Medicare, private pay, and local public school districts.

Change in Accounting Principle

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities {Topic 958), Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, as amended, that
requires not-for-profit entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line
item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash and other financial assets
and to provide additional disclosures to disaggregate the amount of contributed nonfinancial
assets recognized to include type, qualitative information about whether contributed
nonfinancial assets were either monetized or utilized during the reporting period, description
of the programs utilizing the assets, description of any donor-imposed restrictions and
description of valuation techniques. NFIN adopted ASU 2020-07 in fiscal year 2022.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting, have been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and
transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows:

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met by actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of
the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses
are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on
investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or
law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions are reported as
reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations of restrictions with
donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been accomplished
and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed
restriction is fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a
purpose that is directly attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

(8)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FEB9BBC-7790-4417-846C-5191C81018CF

NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Equivalents

All short-term Investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are
considered cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and
equivalents within investment accounts are considered to be investments for purposes of
the statement of cash flows.

Accounts Receivable

NFIN carries its accounts receivable net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The
allowance is determined on a periodic basis based on an evaluation of outstanding balances
for accounts over 90 days past due. Those balances deemed by management to have
potential collectability Issues are charged to the allowance for doubtful accounts. As of
June 30, 2022, the allowance was $13.499.

Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken
no significant uncertain tax positions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and.the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

NFIN maintains cash balances at financial institutions,.which at times may exceed federally
insured limits. NFIN has hot experienced any losses in such accounts and, believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually.
Legislative budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to
continue existing programs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair
value at the date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line-method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements 5-33.3 years
Equipment and Furnishings 2-10 years -
Motor Vehicles 3-5 years

(9)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (continued)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to NFIN's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of 1) the useful life of the
leasehold improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the
lease include the years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical health care costs. As of June 30, 2022, the
estimated liability for health care claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $114,440
included in accrued payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial
position.

Fair Value of FInanclai Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. NFIN uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and
liabilities based on those valuation methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of
inputs is summarized in the three broad levels listed below.

level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments. ,

level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

Leve/3-significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in
determining the fair value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

Leases

NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NFIN has leases under which it
is obligated as a lessee. Operating leases as a lessee are included in right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term.
Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating righ>of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at commencement date
based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term discounted using an
appropriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the
risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as
the incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at
commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The value, of an
option to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain
management will exercise that option.

(10)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

NFIN recognizes revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to which NFIN
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to its customers using
the following five-step process:

1. Identify the contract(s) with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligation(s) in the contract
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfies a performance obligation.

See note 7 for details on how the above five-step process is applied to NFIN's contracts with
customers.

Contributed Nonfinanclal Assets

NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facilities which are valued at the fair value of
similar properties available use in commercial markets. NFIN also receives contributed
goods which are value at estimated fair value. See note 8 for additional information on
contributed nonfinancial assets in 2022.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs incurred totaled $44,728
during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Subsequent Events

NFIN has evaluated subsequent events through October 7, 2022, the date which the
financial statements were available for issue, noting no events requiring adjustment to, or
disclosure in, the financial statements.

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2022, assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date,
comprise the following:

Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Investments

Due from affiliate

Total financial assets

Less amounts designated for program purposes
Total financial assets available for general expenditures

$ 3,662,016
7.381.539

3,387,522
106,738

14,537,815

(325,819)
$  14.537.815

(11)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABLE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As part of the NFIN's liquidity management,. NFIN maintains working capital lines of credit,
which provides liquidity available to meet general expenditures as liabilities and other
obligation come due.

NOTE 3 LINE OF CREDIT

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut, Inc. (NAFICT),
NFI Vermont, Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts Inc. (NFI), an on demand $8,000,000 line
of credit from TO Bank. The line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal
to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus 0.50% per annum, (5.25% as of June 30, 2022).
Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV, NFI and NFIN and
are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual
renewal. As of June 30, 2022, there were no borrowings outstanding under this line of credit.
In addition, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TO for a total amount of
$1,055,513. The Letter of Credit agreements can be utilized by all subsidiaries in the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit
agreements are a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments as of June 30, 2022 consisted of the
following:

Equities
Corporate bonds
Cash and equivalents

1,747,443
1,490,499

149,580
$  3,387,522

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy,
except corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair
value levels during the year.

(12)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Fiscal

Year Due Amount

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate. 0.00%-8.00%
Vehicles notes secured by automobiles. 0.00%-4.5% fixed

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

2023-2041

2023-2024

2,664,654

15,611

2.680.265

(140,821)

$  2,539,444

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will
be forgiven at the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide
housing In accordance with stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable
contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter •

140,821
144,244

144,774

232,122

157,055
1,861,249

•$ 2,680,265

Interest expense was $96,791 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 6 LEASES

NFIN is committed to annual payments under several long-term non-cancelable (except
under certain circumstances) operating leases for property, vehicles and equipment through
fiscal year 2026.

Lease expense reported in occupancy, transportation, and equipment in the statement of
functional expenses amounted to $91,708 for the year ended June 30, 2022, the
components of which are as follows:

Lease cost:

Operating lease expense
Short-term lease expense

67,582

24,126

91,708

(13)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 6 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Payments due include options to extend leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal
year 2026 and are summarized below:

Year ended June 30:

2023

2024

2025

2026

Less: amounts representing interest
Operating lease liabilities

73,874

58,620

12,505

655

145,654

(1,048)

$  144,606

The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 25 months. The
weighted-average discount rate for operating leases is 0.42%.

NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from .Contracts with
Customers, (ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of the promised goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e.,
the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and
fee-for service contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being
reimbursed for services delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is
generally as expenses are incurred. Rate based contracts are recognized with expenses
being reimbursed for services delivered over the course of client stay based on an
established rate with the related funding source which is generally when services are
provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 18% for cost reimbursement contracts and
82% for rate-based contracts for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenue related to contracts with customers

are summarized below:

Accounts

Receivable

Opening (July 1, 2021)
Closing (June 3D, 2022)

Increase

Deferred

Revenue

$  3,909,136 15  205,998

7,381,539 435,742

$  3,472,403 J5  229,744

(14)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 8 CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended June 30. 2022, contributions of nonfinancial assets recognized by NFIN
within the statement of activities included:

Rent

Consumables and supplies

1,053,522
8,828

$  1,062,350

NFIN recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue, including contributions of
rent, consumables and supplies. Contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-
imposed restrictions.

The contributed space is for programmatic activities. In valuing the contributed space, which
is located in Concord, New Hampshire, NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent
comparable rental prices in the area's real estate market.

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which
annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected
to make a contribution of $325,794 for the year ended June 30, 2022. These expenses are
included In employee benefits expense within the accompanying statement of functional
expenses.

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative
management fee for supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries.
These allocated costs amounted to $1,765,645 for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have
been included in supporting services expenses in the accompanying statements of activities
and contracted services expenses within the statement of functional expenses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI.
This charge was $33,757 for the year'ended June 30, 2022, and has been included in the
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30,
2022 in the amount of $106,738. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the
accompanying statement of financial position and is expected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and subsidiary corporations may periodically make short term loans, not to exceed
one year, to its affiliated corporations, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2022, there were no short-term loan
transactions.

(15)
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.'
Stoneham, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

ClA (CliftonLarionJyien LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. Sec CLABlobal.com/disclaimer.

(16)
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFI North, Inc.'s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards:

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
October 7, 2022

(17)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

OFFICERS

Title Name Address

President

Suanne Nader

Educator"

Treasurer

Bruce Farenwald

Clerk/Secretary

Dellie Champagne

Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Occupation Address .

Suanne Nader Educator

Dellie

Champagne

Events

Coprdinator/Teacher/Consiimer
Representative

Bruce Farenwald CFO

Dean L. Murray
Chief Compliance Officer

Ashley
Wainwright Marketing Professional

Banking Industry

Terry Lochhead
Retired Communications

Consultant

Patricia Fillio

Licensed Clinical Mental

Health Counselor

Don Nason

Attorney -

Terms: Until successors are duly elected and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 9-1 -2022
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Pttul L. Daivi. J*iuD.

iHMFLOyMEST

prcicni

.Sepi iy»)7-
prvseni

Scpi, 1901
Jart. IW3

April 1980 .
..•scpi lOiM

N'Fj Norih, Conlixicook Nil

Exfciifiw Direcmr

Responsible for ihe ovcrul) mmiugcmenl of ihis privnic non-proru
corporaiion wtlh u totnl Annual budget oF million clollais. Developed
key programs and services to address the need of stale mnndnlcd child
proieciion. juvenile justice and menial health and cducnuonol agencies within the
Nnrthctn New England area.^ Worked with Bmird of Dhxctors, agency
nmnngcmeni and business siatTto insure corj^oralion's liscul nnd programmiuic
exccllciice. Provided regular cpnsuliniion nnd iroinihg to private and public
human service organizations.

New England.College, Hcnniker. NH

Pan Time Leetttnr/Program Direcn/r MS C^IC
Tenehiug in the eollege's Graduate Program in Clinical MeiitHl Health
Counseling. Masters in Human Scivlces. Masters in Computer Infonnation
S>'stcnis. Masters in Business nnd Master's in Business Admihistmiion.
Ik \=cjopcd numerous courses. Taughj oi)CjOTn.ys,-.dgpugiyiybrid,k as well

online. Strong ability to use technology in class us well ns within online
pinttoi'ms- E.'<cclient re\'icw$ from siudents as well as udminlslration. I racilitale
end oversee student copsianes os well as supervise prinuiry research in llic
graduate school. Post member of the curriculum coininiuec. stroxgic planiting
comniittce and current I'aculty representative to giiulimte couiicit.

NORTH AMERICAN FAMILY INSTlTUTl: - Danvcrs. Massixhusetls

nifecior of Ctiiidren and FontUy Sendees
Kcspoinible for tlx ovcmll nianngcmeiit of children and ftunily scr\ices
Ibl^ i) large natiottolly based non-pmfii human service agency. Developed
a cadre of programs serving New Hampshire. Muinc wd Nonlwn>
Mossachuseiis. Directly responsible for oversight ufagency supen'-isors.
project development, cnntmct negotiation, training nnd fisctil operations.
Develuped core manogcinau u^mlng for project directO]*s, wrote
Proposals resulting in the addition of new projects, developed new nnd innovalix-c
serv-iccS'in the arcu ofwiip nround. iltcrapeuiic toMCt care. Hook ba.sed services
and residential treaUncnt..

NOR-1'HI-ASTP.RN PAMILY INSTITUTE - Danvers. M.A
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AHL'iicy Hfipcrvisnrjar Ailnlesceni Servfccs'/S/S? - 9/91)
ProiBOied lo ihis key maiisgcmem posiiion, Ke.spnnsible for program
supervision, proBrom dovclopmenl. and overall agency managcmcm
Tunclions fncluding facility siling, comnniniiy acccpiancc, laciliiy
licensing.^fleet management, fiscal managcmcni aiul conlracl negotiations with
various funding sources. Directly responsible for ilit opcrnlions of six projects
representing a combined huclgci ol S3.4 million, Additional resjwnsibilitics
mtliidc the provision ofiraining and support for other agency projects!;

Proynini Dirvctor - North Crossing (I2J8S - J/97J
I'romoicd lu develop and manage a residential school emotionally
Disturbed adolescents. This project included a staff of 15 nnd an annual
budget ofSjSO.OOO. Developed this accredited school {join the proposal
stage 1(1 rull,oper<ation. Provided training and suppon to other agency
prujccts as well as the State of Vermont wMhin the areas of program
devclopiiK'nt and staff training. In February of 1985 promoted to
supervi.sc 2 additional piqiccis with a sltiff of 10 nnd a X325,00U budget.

PrcScrcener - Crisis Infervtnlion Services (9/83 - 6/86)
Worked as pan of a inobTle crisis intervention team^ Provided crisis
iniciycntion services throughout five coinmuniiics on an ojxin referral
husis. Worked with urea servicc.s, police and community m«ml>ers to
providc.pre-rscrecning for voluntary and involuntary psychiatric
liospiialization, jhenlal status c.xnms, crists management, rcfeiial and
oonsiillaiibn. Provided cominuniry presentations on the topics of mental

-health and:proyiani seivices. ^

Pn/grntti Director - Coinnmuity Uviitg Project atu! Adoiesceni
Day Program (4/81 -12/83)
Managed 2 mental health program."; with combined staff of 10 and a
budget or$335,000. Designed, oreoni/.ed, slafTcd and supervised a
treatment program that achieved a high client success rate. Obtained
contract fundiitg from an additional stale agency and from the stale of
Vcrmoni. .Consulted in agencies in the states of Maryland and New
Hainpsliire on the development tmcl management ofcomnuinity-based
treatment.

Caseworker - Foster Care Program (4/80- 4/81)
Managed a caseload of adolescents ̂ omniincd lo the Department of Voulh
Services. Provided ongoing counseling and advocacy within the courts
ami eomnumiiy. Developed a group actisnty component.

F.DVCA nors
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2(H»4 2008 IMvD. in Ikiman and Oiyanizalioiml DcvclopmeiU
Oradirmc Univcrjiiiy

20fMr20UO M.A. ill I kiman and Orynnizniional Syslems, Fielding Oinduuic
Unu'ersily,.

0;.SI • 19X3 kaincd 30 crcdils lowiud ii Master dI'kduciiiion in Human Service
Manngemem. riosion Univcrsiiy.

197?- 1979 Bachelor ol Scicnte in Human Service \viih Higli Honors.
Noitheaslcrn Univcrsiiy. Dean's Lisi 197.3-1979.

OTHI-R kEI.ATISD HXPEKIENCn

,_.Nil|uncl Kacully. l/nivcrsiiy or Kesv Hnmpshirc 2014-prcscm
Fionrd Member New Hampshire As.socintion for Ihc Blind, 20)2 lo prc.senl
In.stimu' for Social Innovalion Rcscardr rcllow 2010 Id 20M

Don fki.ihncll Scholarship Award for Oryahi/Jiionai ;mil Social C.'hatige 2007
Vice C hair Board of Man5jgers.,Comnumiiy Providci'Ncuvorli; 2003-2006
Socrcuirv l3o»rd ofMannger.s Conimoniiy Provider Neiwork" 1999*2003
Ronrd Member Miivenwood Hcrilage Mcighis, Chair Plannrng Commiucc 2002. Vice Picsidcni
ol' ihc Boafd of Direciors 2006, Presidcnl npard of" Direcinr 200R-20I I
Board Member Maine Association of Mental Health Services 2O01-present
Lcadcrsliip NM class or2U0]
PicsKlcni Hopkinion Independent School Board oTDirectors 1999-2009
rWmcr Masso^husettsd.icenacd-Socih) Worker-^hicr'ftOOUlTS''
Clinician, Northeastern Family Center, Mclrosc Ma. 198X-)989
Cnnsuliant. NkCMHS, Aiiicsbiiry. Ma, 1988-1990
Trainer. Community Pidgrnms Innovations 1986-1993

TRAININGS, WORKSHOPS AND PRESF.N FATIONS (parlial list)

The Rc.silicncy Ffvclor: Our Role in .Advancing CliilU and Youth Well Being- Keynote
.Si»,taker
(  laid and l-an)ll\ Pniouler Neiwoik Annual ConTci'cnce 201 h

Wdrking Allirtiict; Thi Hnilding Blocks for Ensuring Successful Outcomes
Ch'ild ;md [•ainlk'Mhovidcr Network Annual Gonlcicncc 2016

l,oading with Vision Across and Witltin the Orgnni/ation
Semoi l.cadcrsh'ip ConTcrence Alliance lor Slnmg Childicn'iind rnm'tlics 2015

Cultural Foundations in Mtnini Hcnith Practice

Nlr'l iNorih Core Training 2t)|5,

Cunscions Orgahaations; Stories ttml Practices from (he Nonpront niiil For I'rofil Sector



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4FEB9BBC-7790-4417-&46C-5191C81018CF

Inlcniiiiionul l.cader>hii).,-yss(>cuui(>n Glohal Col^^'^icoCc ?()M

S'lip^TVisioiK -MftiingtmcDl Jiiul Ucnilci ship; Gross eun i.'n(s vvilhin Iht nonmilivf
cuniniunlry-
RUodc Isjahii F'sycliologica) CicnlcKs 201 <1

Workplace Diversity oihI Inclusion
Munian Kcsjiurcc Associaliun orGreuicr (!ohcv>ril 20)3

A.V- . * ••

Ouitural Diversity
MoiTiinack County House ofCcnfctions 2013

Cirnerutlvc l.cutliTship
Tobias I.eudersb'jp Institute 2012

l\iui'rncnl KcHclcrship in Nonpront Orgnniltutions
S'ciiiof l.cndcrship Gunlcrcncc ACl* 2012

Leadership Development
NAlT Nuiiohal.Conference 201 1

Ccnct Hiive LciKlersltip: Kxploring Leadership Development NYithin Orgnnizntiuns and
Tcnrhs

SciiibrJ.cadc'rship Conference 2011

^C.uHunil DiyersilyJn^lh.c.Clnssroom^^ ^ •• •
NRG Fiiculiy Dcvclopineni Workshop 201 1

Working Alllonce widiin the Glnssroom
Coiitoocbok School Summer'2008

Leadership Development Seminar >
NT! Ixadcrship Development ProBram Spriitg^ummci 2O08

Dchavinr Miiiiugemcnt
NKl Nonh 'Corc Tmining2007

Meaning Making tvithin Organizations
NFI North ileadership Hrorcssionai Devclopmcnl 2006
HcintcgrotiveScn lceK for Youth
l)CYl""{ihhuol GubfcrciK'C 2006

flifficult People and Connici Management
'DCY K Annual Conference 2006
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'The Kolc of Story TcUinK tn Loulersliip
NAl'I Nuilonnl Coiifercncc 2003

COURSES TAUGHT

New En){lumi Coltcce Gruduntc And Continuing Studies

Mastri-s in Hcallli Core (ull llircc credit coursw)

•  Smiclurc of Sociid Problems

•  l.ong Term Care
•  Health Cure Managetncni

Mnslcrs In Community Mcntnl Health Counseling (tiircc to Tmir credit courses)

•  N4emdl Henlih Mnnogemcm
• Multtciiltural Issucs'in Mental Health Delivery

• Car^^r Devclopnicnt and Counseling
•  Rescnrdi Meiliods

• Capstone Faciliiulion

Masters in Buslness Admlmstratloi)

•  Siraicgic Planning and Policy
• UrgurnXajtonoj^Managcm^i uiul Leadership .....
• Orguni/alional CcNttmunication, Negnluiiion and Conflict Resolution
•  Strategic Capstone
• Orguni'/ailinnal Leadership and Change

Mnslcix In Henlih Cure Management

•  Dynamics of Nonprpni Oovcrnancw

Itniversity of New Hnmpshirc

Masters in Public Adminbtration

• Orgoniiolion and Monogenicnt in the IHtblic ond Nmtproill Sccinr
•  niToctlvc Change Management

HiffertncasAuiUabkon Reatifsi
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Luke'Revhard, MBA

Executive t^m member wjth experience leacfing operations in behavioral health.and disability
service'systems.

NFI North. Inc.

Ch/ef Opersting Officer April 202i'Present

Respon^bie for daily operatbr^s of aD agency programs
Lead and ̂ pervise aD strat^lc plan operatiorts
Collaborate with Executive LeadersNptearri on strategic initiatives and operatbriai process
Comrhuhicate with the'CEO arid Board of Directors on agency goals ̂  initiatives
Represent NFI North with state partners and the general public
Oversee new business developn^nt and strategic opportunities
Oversee r^atiortships with vertdors, subsidiaries, and partners

Untverfiih/ of New Hampshire

Director of Opeiations, Cenier'for STAf^f Services, Instltu^ ori DlMblltty', July iOIMpir 2d2f

'• b^ratioriai leadership for START Mental Health and Intelledual Disabaity Progr^
•  Deyeiop arb implement strategic operating plans to align with UNH goals
•  Develop programm^ic co^ prpjectioh proposals for various state government systerhs
• ^mber of the Instttute on DisabDrty at University of New Hampshire management team
-• Research and Identify opportunities to leverage state and federal Medicaid and MOO

funds forprogrammatic use

Mv Health Mv R^ources fMHMRt of Tairaht County 2005 through 2019

Chief Operating Officer of Disability Services May 2017-Ji/ne 20f 9

•  Chief Operations Officer ifor Disability Services, leading services to 4000V people with
di^bQiti^mpnthly
Dev^op strategic.operating plans to achieve ag^cy manda^ ̂

•  Responsible for daily operations and supervsbn of SOiO.fuD-time staff
•  Responsble for oversight for st^ funded Authority Operatior^
'• Responsi.ble for operation of Proper function op^tions.'irtduding HC6S programs ̂  ICF

homes

•  beyelpp.and over^ S^^rniDbn.annual oper^ions budge^ including 2PM4- h Medicaid funds
•  Lead.develr^rnent'team and supervise first crisis Intervention and prevention program in

Texas;expa'nded contract across the state for fiiiither implementation
^!d. Award Winner for Special Services'tp.the START National Team

•  Establish'cpst analysis of program operations raiting in net oper^ional Increase of
reyenuesexceedng 1 m'

'• Oversight of Housing Grants,'Supported Employment Opera'tipns, and SheftVPius^re.Programs
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•  Oversight of programs funded through Health Human Services Commission, Office of the
Governorand Center for Medicaid Services 1115 Waiver

Senior Program Director of Disability Services

Program Director

Program Manager

Program Specialist

Service Coordination

2012-17

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2005-09

Education

Master of Business Administration

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
•  Minor-Criminal Justice

Community Leadership

University of Texas-Permian Basin

Texas State University

New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Workforce Development Leadership Team
•  State

Leadership Fort Worth, Class of 2016
•  Community engagement leadership development course designed to foster civic leadership

skillsand education opportunities

Samaritan House Board of Directors

•  Board member providing support for non-profit providing support services and residential
support to individuals with HIV/AIDS, Mental Illness, and other specialneeds

MH Housing Development of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for the property management organization providing housing

supports toindividuals with mental illness

IDD Council of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for non-profit community group with a mission of increasing awareness,

promotinginclusion and providing education about disabilities in the community

IDD Directors Consortium

•  Member of statewide leadership group of 39 Community Centers charged with policy
advisementand stakeholder response for more than 50.000 people with disabilities in Texas

Texas Health and Human Services STAR Kids Workgroup
•  Member legislatively appointed group charged with providing policy design for newly

■  ImpiementedManaged Care platform for 180,000 children with disabilities in Texas

YMCA Soccer, Basketball, Baseball Coaching Volunteer

Henniker Youth Athletics, Assistant Coach

2013-2018

2019-present

Luke Reynard
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

FINANCIAL EKPERTISC

»  f'inon'cTot Reporting

.  Coui and Credit

Monogement

•  Budget Creation and
Anolysii

•  Payroll Management

•  Strotegic Planning

.  rinoniltl Tro'ining and

Maf\agement

,  Accounts Poyoble and

Recei'vol3fe

PROFILE

•  A dynamic leam leader who leverages posiiive energy,
humor and keen Intelligence to inspire, motivate .'and .

guide team members to optfn-ial success.

•  Respected lihancial prolesstonal. with a proven record o(
success driving operations lor growth and maxlmrzing
cost efficiency.

•  Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic
planning for, and management and analysis ol.' multi;
million dollar budgets.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFl, North, Inc., Contbocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 - PRESENT

CHIEF FINANOAl OFFICER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the
organization's 38 million dollar annual operating budget In our twenty programs across Maine and
New Hampshire and managing a staff of 7. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial
operations including budget creation and management.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 -

FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER

Repon'mg to CEO, principal financial leader responsibi.e for overall financial management ol the
organization's ]3 million dollar annual operating budget seryi'iig Hillsborough County and managing a
staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Provided program anaiysis to advise on future direction of resources^'
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•  Miinaee accounting and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and.
analysis, policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and dally procliKt>vity of air
fitiarsces;'.

•  Consolidated business team to save approximately 18% of departmental pc'sotmcl costs/

Star Island Corporation. Portsmouth, NH, 2009 - h/lAY 201S

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Repurimg to CCO. principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the

otgaitijation's 3.5 million dollar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annualfy* Manage 2 full
time seasonal employees and additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees-

Key Accomplishments:

•  Prepare and manage lite anisual budget and all financial reports as needed by the CEO. Finance
Comffilitee and Board ol Directors.

•  rvtanage accounting and finance (ssues'including monthly close,';Accoiinis Receivable, Accounts*^
Payable, policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily prnduclivliy of ail
finances

•  Prepare financial Staiomenis and reporting for CEO. Finance Committee and Board of Oireclors;
including monthly reconcifiation ofrevenues and expenses, with appropriate variation
explanatiorss and analysis^

•  Critically evalviaie new. or renewal contracts and aisnual corporate insurance policies for
appropriateness.

•  Key contributor of 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016} strategic plans, authoring the rinancial
■" tactics' ^ "■
•  Developed and executed a weeMy matrix to analyre payroll for llO seasonal hourty staff to

siiccessfulty Keep seasonal salaries uisder budget for the past throe years saving $30,000 plus
annually.

•  Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Depadmeni Heads to share updated financial
information and collaborate on seasonal budget management.

•  Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

•  Manage preparation and fleldwork for annual exiiernal audit process.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2004 - 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER
Promoted to leadership role supporting ail accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island
offices^

Key Accomplishments;
•  Created and implemented Finonce Handbook as a guidc^ for staff and Finance Committee.
•  Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation siructure.Mntplemented lime clocks to

pay nonexempi seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.
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•  leadership and davto dav management of seasonal on island stores (book shop and lobby

shop) purchased nil inventory, managed staff and all inventory controls.

•  Compile detailed information to prepare and submit regulatory filings lor town, stale, federal'

•  Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

•  Staff iiatson to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NK, 2000 > 2003 .

ACCOUNTANT

Hired 10 process Accounts Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

•  Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm.

•  Implemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

•  Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised Ger^eral Ledger
account structure for efficiency.

•  Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maxwnire
productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by 13 Communications), Auburn, MA,
ACCOUNTANT. 1997 - 1999

OFFICE ASSISTANT. 1995 - 1997

COMPUTER.SKILLS - ■ -

Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynatmcs Great

Piams and Management Reporter, Blackbaud financial Edge, Fund E2 Accounting. Paychex
Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll. Apprentice level in Evoiv and LWSl

Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Leadership Seacoasi, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 - PRESENT;

Treasurer September. 2016 • PRESENT

Leadership Seacoasi, Admissions Committee, 2014 • PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast. Program Graduate. 2013

4H, Judge for various competitions. 2013 -201S
Barringloo NH PIA 2011-2015

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University

Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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Jennifer L. Altieri

Objective

/  .
Key Skills and Strengths

•Leadership - Adept at leading/managing cross-functional programs.
•System building and implementation
•Capable of leading high performing teams under tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
•Strong communication skills (verbal and written).
►Problem solver - Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues.

4
A motivated professional seeking a position that continues to enliance my skills and
challenge fiullier growth and de\'elopnient uUle providing leadership to plan, direct and
coordinate program expansion, program oversight and system implementatioiL

Education

Masters of Science, Clinical Menial Health Counseling with an addictions treatment
Certificate, Plymouth State University, Plymouth N.H. Accredited by the Counsel for
Acci^tation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs (CACREP) Graduation date, December I,

of2015. CPA 3.75
Bachelor of Science, Human Senices/Cotinseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

Professional Experience

Regional Director, NFINorth 12/2022- Current
Responsible for overseeing the administntioo of assigned programs. Provide leadership, supervision, guidance, and
clinical support. Responsible for communicating all policies and procedtires, contract negotiations and developo^t,
fiscal planning and oo-call availability.

Care Management Entity Administrator, NFI North I/202I-J2/2022
Responsible for overseeing the administration of all programs of the Care Management Entity (CME) tl^t
seives as a centralized accountability hub to coordinate all care for youtli witli con^lex behavioral health
challenges v^lio are involved in nuUtiple systems. The CME Administrator pro\'ides leadership, supervision,
guidance, and clinical stq^port to programs and staff. Responsible for comnnmicating all policies and
procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on<all availability.

Program Director, FAST Forward and Tr-ECC State Wide 2017-1/202! Oversee program
operations for two separate entities. One providing a Certified Wraparound model to children, youth and
femilies ages 5-21. The other entity providing intensive transitional services to Residential and psychiatric
hospitalized children, youth and fiunilies.

Program Director, NFI North FASTForward and Community Based Ser\ices, State Wide 2017-2020.
Oversee program operations for two separate entities. One pro\'iding a Certified Wraparound model to
children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity provides intensive therapeutic services through
clinicians and case managers through two different New Hampshire certified programs serving 0-21 years
of age. Individual service option and Foster care as weU as Home Based Therapeutic Services.
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Program Director, NF! North transitional housing. Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New Hampshire. And Array
of Services. Community Based, and January 2016-2017.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included a staff team of 10
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.

Intern, NFl North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of

Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.

Program Director, NF! North Array of Services. Davenport School and ISO Services 2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for emotionally
disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes
and supervision of staff.

Program Director, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem. N H. - 2008-2009
Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFi, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-
2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.
Shift Supervisor; NFl, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- January 2002-June
2004.

Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for designated shift.

Residential Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- October 2000-
January2002,
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting. Includes tasks
such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

■  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an
organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental health needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

■  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE training is
ideal for schools committed to improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis
management plans and emergency response.
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Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North. Responsible for PREA
implementalion, policy making and training of staff. Agency trainer utilizing NFI North's
curriculum I co-train staff on professional boundaries, Treatment Intervention, Family systems,
and documentation skills. Also, designed and presented at NFI North's annual conference on
'Girls fmding their voice' and 'Marketing your services.'
Illness, Management and Recovery Currently being trained and will obtain a 16 hour
certification on this evidence based training.
Supported Employment 2 day certification
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training developed for the
National Center for Trauma Informed Care

CADY (communities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for Grafton county's
restorative justice expansion program.2013-current
Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To Pennanency Project. -
Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided Treatment.
Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services and The North
Country consortium,
Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA ofNH.
Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale (CANS)
Science Implementation
NH Wraparound

Membership/Affiliation

Member of American Counseling Association (ACA) Currently Expired
National Certified Counselor (NCC) NBCC's flagship credential, the National Certified
Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who voluntarily apply and successfully complete rigorous
standards. These standards,are based on research in the counseling profession. The NCC is the
prerequisite for all NBCC specialty certifications Currently not reinstated
Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the Center of
Credentialing and Education and the National Organization of Human Services.
Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsilon Pi, which is a chapter of Chi Sigma Iota
(CSI), which is an international counseling honor society.
Board Panel Member with lOD/NAMI to approve Certifications for all NH Wrap Coordinators.

Awards/Recognition

Scholarship Awarded.through National Board for Certified Counselors to further my education
at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was 55,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under forty recipients for New Hampshire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Spirit of community award NFI/NAFI (2019)
Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and Africa (2008.)

References

Noel Chioman. LICSW (Internship site supervisor) 1-603-229-3915
Charlene Nickerson. MSW (Social worker at the Federal Prison in Berlin) 1-603-723-2509
Lora Abraham. LCSW, MBA (Director II—Community health behavioral services) 1-315-798-
8869 x231

Dr. Steven Flvnn. (Advisor at Plymouth State University) 1-603-535-3221
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Jacqueline Davis, MS, LCMHC

Education

Southern New Hampshire University-Manchester, NH
Master of Science in Clinical Mental Health Counseling, January 2013

Bachelor of Science in Psychology, October 2008

Licensure

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor: State of NH

Employment

NFI North. January 2019-Present

•  Care Management Entity Administrator- I oversee all. programs and staff under the CME,
supervise program directors/administrative staff and clinicaL consultants, facilitate staff
meetings and trainings, participate in the NFI North Leadership team and.the Clinical
Development team (Since January 2023)

-• CME Clinical Director- I oversaw all clinical aspects of programs under the CME (July
2021 -December 2022)

•  Care Coordinator/Supervisor- I supported families using NH wraparound model and
supervised Care Coordinators (January 2019-June 2021)

Amoskeag Health. July 2016-August 2018

•  Behavioral Health Support Specialist- As part of the Manchester Community Schools
Project, I provided group counseling, individual counseling, diagnosis and assessment, crisis
support, and behavioral support services to students in grades K-5 at Gossler Park School and
Beech Street School. I was also involved with program development and strategic planning.

Wavpoint September 2014-June 2016

•  Early Childhood Specialist - As a member of the Project LAUNCH team I completed the
Keys to Interactive Parenting Scale (KIPS) following an assessment of a parent-child
interaction. I was also responsible for monthly training, oversight and support and technical
assistance to home visitors in the Healthy Families and Parenting Plus Home Visiting
Programs.

•  ISO/IHB Family Therapist- I provided Intensive home-based treatment including family
therapy, safety planning, parent support/education, and case management.

Riverbend Community Mental Health Inc.. May 2013-ADril 2014

•  Family Support Therapist- I provided family therapy, parent education, intake and clinical
assessment, and case management services.

Child and Family Services, April 2010-October 2012
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Jacqueline Davis, MS, LCMHC
Email: Jacqueiinedavis@nafi.com Phone: 603-568-2295

•  Healthy Families Home Visitor- I provided parent education, case management,
developmental screening, maternal depression screening, and FASD screening and brief
intervention.

The Ninetv-Nine Restaurant. September 2004-December 2010

•  Server/Trainer-1 provided food service, customer service, and staff training.

McDonald's. December 1998-June 2004

•  Shift Manager- I provided food Service and customer service, and also had responsibilities
around banking, product ordering, scheduling, and shift oversight.



OocuSign Envelope ID; 4FEB9BBC-7790-4417-846C-5191C81018CF

Kathleen M Abate

Objective To leverage my experience in systems transformalipn leadership to develop the
hecessary strategies and will among partners in community settings so that all NH
families and youth are safe, well supported, and on the path to success.

Skills Understanding of System of Care Values and Principles and of
strategies for operationalizing such within public systems
Understanding of the complex webs of various partners, projects, and
initiatives that comprise state and local level service efforts
Extensive presentation, training, program and tool development, and
facilitation experience
Excellent writing skills and extensive grant and issue brief writing
experience
Long stahding relationships with national experts and leaders in the
field of cliildren's and family beha\ioraJ health
Ability to identify and/or develop tools to cnliance strategic planning
and collaboration

Ability to articulate the strengths of youth and family leaders while
maintaining solid relationships across stakeholder groups
Experience developing policies related to systems transformation
efforts

Ability to lead a diverse group into productive dialogue, consensus,
and action

Ability to navigate rapidly changing and often challenging fiscal,
administrative, and political environments
Leadership experience in development of tools and frameworks for
partner agencies, family, and youth engagement and leadership within
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support as well as Systems of Care.

Education B.A., Magna Cum Laude, University of New Hampshire, 1995
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7/2021 to present: Assistant Administrator for the Care Management
Entity at NFI North, 40 Park Ln Contoocook NH

Oversee operations of the CME, with the Administrator of the CME, and ensure
P  . quality services are provided to youth and families in both the Wraparound and TrECC
^  programs, as well as work to develop new programs under the CME umbrella. Work

with implementation partners and the Bureau of Children's Behavioral Health to
ensure administrative and programmatic excellence. Represent NFI North'at state
level planning and policy tables and identify system gaps and barriers the CME can
assist to address. Ensure families and youth have a voice in all processes. Support
Program Directors and Supervisors in all areas of staff supervision and development
and cultivate a culture of mutual respect and support internally and with partners in
the work.

9/2018 to present: Assistant Program Director, FAST Forward, NFI North,
40 Park Ln Contoocook NH

Oversee development of NH's CME services related to Wraparound,
Transitional Enhanced Care Coordination, and In- Home Supports. Manage the
Interim Supports List for FAST Forward. Supervise program staff and partner with
coaching staff from the UNH Institute on Disability to ensure administrative and
practice fidelity and excellence. Work in cross stakeholder teams to further develop
and refine practice, evaluation, and training efforts related to NH's System of Care
development. Assist in development of CME practices for monitoring and oversight
functions regarding transition of youth from Residential and Psychiatric Hospital
settings. Represent NFI North on various long term and ad hoc workgroups and
committees.

10/2016 to 9/2018: Clinical Care Manager/ FAST Forward Program, NFI
North, 40 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH.

Provided facilitation of evidence-based NH Wraparound Planning Process as
developed and piloted under NH's Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative
Workforce Development Network. Assist families to drive their own cross environment
Plan of Care from a strengths-based perspective. Assist to coordinate front loaded
clinical and practical supports to support children, youth, and families to access the
mLx of public and private supports that enhance their ability to remain in their homes,
schools and communities.

7/2000-10/2016: Executive Director, Granite State Federation of Families
for Children's Mental Health, Manchester, NH.

Responsible for all the day-to-day business functions of a children's mental
health support, advocacy, and training non-profit organization. Responsible to pro\'ide
support, training, and hosting functions to YouthMOVE NH. Provide state level family
leadership to all Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative (NH CBHC) umbrella
initiatives. Was nominated as the first Chair of the CBHC, a cross stakeholder
collaborative that has brought multiple federal grants into NH by building a
comprehensive integrated plan for children's behavioral health and tying the efforts of
all partners to that plan. Provide leadership to all related projects. Appointments
included: Steering Committee, CBHC. Co-Leader; Wraparound NH Curriculum and
Training Development Workgroup; Co-Leader Youth Peer Support Development;
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Member, Safe Schools Healthy Students and Project AWARE State Management
Team; Member, Family Engagement and Leadership Assessment and Mapping
Project; Member, iQisi Medicaid State Plan Amendment Writing Group; Member,
Behavioral Health Equity Task Force; Member, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
Statewide Implementation Team; Member, NH CBHC Workforce Development
Network Leadership Team; Member, RENEW Leadership team; Member, NH School
Behavioral Health Community of Practice; Member, State Advisory for State Youth
Treatment Planning initiative

11/1999-7/2000: Service Broker, Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH
Asked to create a program within which consumers and families would gain

greater fiscal and planning control over the ways in which their supports were
identified and delivered. Developed fiscal intermediary options, individualized person
specific and portable budgets, facilitated planning, and wrote agency protocol,
procedures and policies which would facilitate greater choice and control for people
with intellectual and developmental disabilities while ensuring risk and liability for the
service pro\'ider were minimized.

11/1995-11/1999: Service Coordinator and MIMs Program Coordinator,
Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH

Provided service planning and advocacy supports to adults diagnosed with
complex and multiple challenges, including developmental disabilities, traumatic
brain injury, and severe and chronic mental illness. Was responsible for initiating and
designing the first fully developed inter-agency Mental Illness Management Services
program in the state, whereby appropriate symptom management services were made
available to adults and children with multiple and complex dd/mh/sud challenges.
Headed several special projects and led multiple committees related to treatment and
service issues and systems change. Served as a mentor and trainer to newer staff to the
agency.

6/1991-11/1995: Independent Living Case Manager, Moore Center
Services, Manchester, NH

Provided both direct and indirect supports and services to adults with dual
diagnoses and their families in the Greater Manchester area. Position required
detailed knowledge of the local, state, and federal benefits systems, including
Medicaid, Medicare, Social Security and Section 8 Housing. Assisted with teaching
effective self-advocacy as well as sldlls of daily living and of social interactions.

2 •
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Leadership and
Publications

Malloy, JoAnne, Drake, Jonathon, Cormier, Gail and Abate, Kathleen. "The RENEW
Model of Futures Planning, Resource Development, and School-to-Career Experiences
for Youth with Emotional and Behavioral Disorders." Transition ofSecondary
Students with Emotional or Behavioral Disorders: Current Approachesfor Positive
Outcomes. By Douglas Cheney. Champaign, IL: Research, 2010. N. pag. Print.

Co-author, NH Children's Behavioral Health Core Competencies

First Chair, New Hamp.shire Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative, 2014-2015
www. n h 4 vou th. 0 r

University of Maryland, Dept. of Psychiatjy, Center for School Mental Health, National
Evaluation Ad\nsor)'Member, January 2016 to 2018

Member, Board of Directors, On the Road to Wellness Adult Education and Mental
Wellness Center, Manchester and Derry NH, August 2016 to present

Multiple National Presentations related to Family and Youth Driven Wraparound,
Core Competencies Development, Workforce Development, Systems of Care, 2001-
Present

References
Kim Firth, Program Director, Endowment for Health, 603-228-2448 x 316,
kfirtht^^endowmentforhealth.ora

Dr. JoAnne Malloy, PhD, Clinical Assistant Professor and RENEW Project Director,
University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability; Chair, NH Children's Behavioral
Health Collaborative Workforce Development Network
ioannne.mallovfg'unh.edu 603-228-2084

Jennifer Altieri, Program Director NFI North FAST Forward program,
iennifetaUieri@nafi.com

Amy Parece-Grogan, Cultural and Linguistic Competence Coordinator, NH DHHS
Office of Minority Health and Refugee Affairs, (603) 271-3986
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•Kaitiyn beveau

Skills

'I am r^iabl^'dedicated/aind deeply pa^bnate about theybutKand families we ser>^^ I ha\«

•held several positions within NFI;which Ihdude several years of supervisory experience 'l am
strengVhsrbased. in my approach with all people, and believe in'the importance of cdiatorajting
and relationship building, i h^e'strong writing skills, adhere to deadline^ am.organized and

;detail-dhented.

Experience

07/2021 Pr«ent

NFI North, FAST ̂rwa.rd- Program Director

•  bv^seeing administrative tasks to include: billing, hiring, scheduling, trainirig, payroll,

contracted services.

•  Prodding direct supervision to care'coordinators and supervisors.'

•  CbJJaboration among System of Care partners.

•  Program pevelopn>ent to include building of protocols and structurei

•  Supportirrg youth'ahd families in crias and safety planning, as v^U as prbvidrrg

ihtermKtent care coordinatloa

•  CANStrainer

08/2020 ,07/2021

NF| North; FAST Forward 'Care Coordinator (Certified)

•  Coordinating care for youth and families to create and connect to sustairt^le comm'imi^

support.

• Graphicfacilitation

•  Creating Pjans of Cafe for families and documenting rheeting notes, contact notes, and

incidenlrepprls,.

• Collabbratirig with'systems and programs throughout the state"t6,pr6mbte best

outcomes for youth and families.

•' Assisting youth and families.in creating and utilizirig safety'plans.

•  Ensuring,^ empcfw^ng youth:and families voices and choices!

•  Cc^plet^ all requii^ehts indudirig several trainings foTceftiricatba
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•  CANS Certification

07/2017- 08/2020

NFI North, Davenport - Assistant Program Director

•  Overseeing direct'care staff and shift supervisors, providing bi-weekly supervision to shift

supervisors and administrative assistant

Oversee petty cash and reconcile weekly •

Scheduling

Oversee maintenance and safety of grounds

Milieu management

Creating and implementing protocols in order to improve consistencies among the staff

team

•  Create and facilitate curriculums for therapeutic groups with guidance from clinical

coordinator.

08/2017- 07/01/2019

NFI North, Davenport - Shift Supervisor

•  Overseeing and providing regular supervision to Direct Care Staff

•  Provide support and counseling for clients

•  Organizing events such as the "Spring Fling"

•  Strong understanding of milieu management and keeping the grounds to acceptable

standards

•  Strong documentation skills and commitment to completing tasks by deadlines

01/2017 - 08/2017

NFI North, Davenport - Direct Care Counselor

•  Provide support and counselling for clients

•  Complete documentation to satisfactory levels by deadlines

•  Attended multiple core trainings and established a foundation for understanding

normative culture.

•  Run and lead productive groups

11/2016 - 01/2017

The Healthy Rhino, Littleton NH - Cashier/Customer Service

•  Cashier

•  Customer Service

•  Organization and tracking of inventory

06/2014-09/2016

Littleton Regional Healthcare, Littleton NH - Certified Medical Assistant
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•  Float position with experience in Urology, Pulmonology, Women's Health, Primary Care,

Pediatrics, Orthopaedics and Psychiatry.

•  Allergy Testing and administering immunotherapy injections

•  Clerical/Administrative assistance

Education

08/2019 -04/2022

Southern New Hampshire University, New Hampshire - M.S. Psychology ++ Child and
developmental Psychology

12/2016 - 06/29/2019

Granite State College, New Hampshire - B.S. Psychology

01/2012 -06/2014

White Mountains Community College, New Hampshire - A.S. Medical Assisting

Professional Trainings

2018- TBRI 3 out of 4 modules completed

2020- WRAP Training

2019- CPR/Flrst Aid Certification

2021- Cultural and Linguistic Competency

2021- Graphic Facilitation with Patty Cotton

2018- NFI Leadership Training

2021 - Youth Mental Health First Aid

2020- CANS

2021- Families and Addiction

2021 - CANS Train the Trainer

Awards

•  2018-NFI North Shining Star Award

•  2016- Nominated LRH Employee of the Year

References

References available upon request
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Melissa Anne Davis, LCMHC

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor experienced in clinical supervision, program management and many years of
experience working with young children and their families in the areas of trauma and attachment.

WORK EXPERIENCE

NFI North, Tilton, NH

•  Director of Early Childhood Wraparound, August 2022-current
•  Oversees all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake, record keeping and service/discharge plans,
•  Responsible for fiscal management of the program.
•  Responsible for hiring, retention, training and supervision of stafT.
•  Collaborates and coordinates with state personnel and agency partners within the NH System of Care and beyond.
•  Facilitates staff meeting and trainings within the agency and for the community.
•  Responsible for marketing and recruitment of programming statewide.

Waypoint (formerly Child and Family Services), Concord, NH
Comprehensive Family Support Manager, September 2019 - August 2022
Therapeutic Day Treatment Manager, February 2018-June 2019
Clinician, May 2016-February 2018
Partners for Change Consultant, May 2016-August 2017
Hpme Based Therapeutic Case Manager and Family Therapist, June 2014-May 2016
•  Responsible for the day to day operations of the Concord office Parenting Plus, Enhanced Care Coordination

programs and previously the Therapeutic Day Treatment Program.
•  Responsible for overseeing the implernentation of the System of Care project in Manchester.
•  Member of the Workforce Development group at the Institute on Disability at UNH.
•  Guides staff in implementation of the NH Wraparound Model and the Protective Factors.
•  Facilitates Concord Connections networking group for providers working with young children and their families.
•  Responsible for management of personnel functions including hiring, training and supervision.
•  Ensure programs followed DHHS contracts and/or grant requirements and work collaboratively with community

partners to enhance program development.
•  Facilitate clinical and administrative staff meetings to ensure evidence based practices are being applied with

fidelity to meet client need and provide protocols for timely completion of program case records.
•  Facilitate case reviews in accordance with quality improvement practices.
•  Responsible for ensuring program costs reflect contracts within program and agency budgets.
•  Provided in office psychotherapy to children, adolescents, adults and families using Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

(CBT), Child Parent Psychotherapy (CPP) and Trauma Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TFCBT).
•  Conducted a variety of psychological assessments to determine diagnosis and best course of treatment.
•  Developed treatment plan collaboratively and made adjustment and changes as treatment progressed.
•  Provided trauma and attachment consultation and trainings to child protection workers throughout the state.
•  Provided in home family therapy and case management to families involved with child protection and juvenile

justice services and assisted families in meeting court ordered goals.
•  Coordinated and facilitated treatment team meetings with families and community providers to determine

treatment options that would ensure safety, permanency and well-being for children and adolescents.
•  Attended court hearings, drafted monthly court reports and testified in court hearings when necessary.
•  Provided on call weekend and evening crisis support as needed.

Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF), Manchester, NH
Child Protective Service Worker IV, December 2008 - June 2014
•  Assessed and secured the ongoing safety and well-being of children and prevent further abuse/neglect.
•  Provided ongoing case management and support to families, foster families and children and youth and assists all

family members in developing and completing case plan objectives and complying with court orders.
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Prepared written reports to the court, CASA, and all parties involved in a case in preparation for regular court
hearings.
Documented contacts regarding case management, support, crisis intervention and legal action and supported
efforts to assess the safety, permanency and well-being of all children and youth in and out of foster care.

Worked collaboratively with community agencies including law enforcement, school and medical personnel as it
relates to investigation, provision of services and in accordance with the current court protocols.
Located suitable alternative placements to meet the specific needs of child/children and prepares the child and
family in preparation for placement.

Assisted in the design and development of peer workshops and trainings for community partners.

CREATE, Manchester, NH
Masters Level Clinician, 1/2011-2/2013
Graduate Intern 5/2009-11/2010

•  Provided individual counseling to children, adolescents, adults and couples.
•  Developed individual, strength based treatment plans collaboratively with clients.
•  Responsible for diagnostic determinations during the intake process and throughout ongoing therapy work.
•  Provided a solution-based approach to interventions and practice through the use of play therapy, talk therapy,

cognitive behavioral therapy, dialectical behavioral therapy and psycho education.
•  Designed and facilitated trainings and workshops for peers and community partners.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH
Graduate Intern in the Adolescent Day Treatment Program, 11/2008 - 05/2009
•  Conducted psycho-social assessments upon intake to determine the adolescents' individual needs and services.
•  Facilitated group therapy and individual therapy sessions fostering independent living skills.
•  Provided a positive milieu environment that encouraged interpersonal relationships and support.

•  Provided case management and support to the adolescent and family involved with juvenile justice services.

State of New Hampshire Division of Family Assistance, Manchester, NH
Family Service Specialist, 06/2007-12/2008

•  Interviewed clients to determine need, review options, and obtain pertinent information, utilizing an investigative
interactive interviewing process.

•  Gathered information to certify eligibility and ensure accurate benefit determination.

•  Advised an applicant or recipient of education, employment, and vocational rehabilitation opportunities to refer
them for testing, counseling or placement.

Kindertree Learning Center, Manchester, NH
Lead Preschool Teacher, 09/2006 - 06/2007

Bedford Village Morning School, Bedford, NH
Lead Preschool Teacher / Director of Fun and Arts Program, 08/2005 - 06/2006
S.H.E.D. / Kids Club, North Andovcr, MA
Kindergarten Teacher, 09/2003 - 08/2004
•  Prepared and administered developmental assessments of children and recommended area referrals.
•  Engaged children in a variety of age-appropriate activities to promote speech, fine and gross motor skills and

sensory awareness.

•  Implemented full curriculum for enrichment and academic value.

•  Provided a safe and nurturing environment for children.

EDUCATION
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

Masters Degree in Community Mental Health Counseling, January 201 1

LESLEY UNIVERSITY

Bachelors Degree in Human Development, April 2008
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JULIE A. PERRON, MS

Facilitator, Educator, Family Engagement Specialist, Experienced Team Leader

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Director of Transitional Enhanced Care Coordination (TrECC); NF! North, July, 2021-
present

•  Responsible for TrECC program design & operations, including quality service delivery
and compliance to federal, state and local accrediting bodies.

•  Recruit, hire and oversee all TrECC program staff.

• Oversee NFI CME regional office in Barrington, NH

" • Laisse with CME program partners including NH Bureau of Children's Behavioral
Health, UNH Institute on Disability, NAMI NH Children & Families Div., Connected
Families NH, and the Keene State Behavioral Health Improvement Institute in the
development, improvement and data monitoring of the program.

•  Team Trainer for NFI staff and members of partner programs for: Foundations of
Transitional Enhanced Care Coordination, Youth Mental Health First Aid, Safety for
Community-based and In-Home Services Staff, and NH Child & Adolescent Needs and
Strengths (CANS) 2.0.

Supervisor & Clinical/Enhanced Clinical Care Manager; NFI North, January, 2020-July
2021

•  Direct supervisor for 6 FAST Forward Care Coordinators.

•  Support families on the Interim Support List while they await assignment of a permanent
Care Coordinator.

•  Directly support 5-6 families in the TrECC and/or FAST Forward program.

•  Collaborate on the conceptual design and pilot of TrECC program tools as part of an
Implementation Science cohort.

• Co-host the weekly TrECC Learning Community, attended by multiple agencies and
program collaborators.

• Assist with program compliance by attending the monthly Data Meeting, annual CQI
and state audits, and performing monthly document review metrics (DRMs).
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•  Design small team-building activities for staff meetings, and collaborate \with our
Management Team to host team training opportunities including Coffee Talks and
"Evolv Guru" sessions. Co-train Youth Mental Health First Aid for the agency.

•  Enhance a\wareness of our programs for community stakeholders by participating in
local and regional meetings and forums including Strafford County Prevention Board,
NH Listens Roundtable Discussions and the Dover Mental Health Alliance.

Clinical Care Manager - Wraparound Coordinator; NFI North FAST Forward Program, April
1, 2019 - January, 2020.

•  Facilitate the Wraparound process with families and their natural, formal and community
supports.

•  Designed and presented "Be the One- Connecting with Youth in Crisis" training
segments for conferences in North Conway and Danvers, MA.

•  Co-facilitated Youth Mental Health First Aid trainings involving new Wraparound
coordinators at two sessions in Littleton and Rochester, NH.

Coalition Coordinator- Bridging the Gaps; City of Rochester, NH; 2017- 2019

•  Created and expanded out-of-school-time program opportunities for at-risk youth, engaging
community volunteers and college interns in the supervision of groups and projects.

•  Implemented RTEC community engagement project resulting in new partner strategies for
working with community youth and families and generating 17 letters of support from
influential stakeholders for youth-serving community initiatives.

• Managed, maximized and reconciled final year's allocation of a SAMHSA Drug-Free
Communities grant. .

• Co-wrote two federal grants for extended program funding

Consultant; Student Activity Fee Committee, University of New Hampshire', 2013- 2017. .

•  Responsible for oversight of $ 5.2 million budget of the UNH Student Activity Fee.

• Mentored and supervised full-time professional staff and student staff members in the
Office of Student Involvement and Leadership.

•  Produced Account-Ability training curriculum, delivered to 70+ students/year and as a
training module at two regional ACUl conferences.

•  Streamlined communication and contract management processes for speaker
engagements, entertainment venues, publications, and group transportation.
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Business Advisor; Student Media Organizations, University of New Hampshire-, 2007-2013.

•  Streamlined production processes and organized file sharing and work flow protocol for
20+ team of student journalists.

•  Trained student business managers in B2B sales strategies, client communication,
online content management, and contract negotiation.

Creator-Owner-Publisher of The Critter Exchange regional newspaper, circulated
throughout 4 states, grossed over $100,000 in advertising annually. 1997-2007

• Created marketing materials, attended trade shows, sold all advertising.

•  Responsible for publication production and distribution throughout 4 states.

•  Supervised editorial and office staff and all volunteer programs.

EDUCATION

Masters of Science - University of New Hampshire; Behavior & Teaching

Bachelor of Science -University of New Hampshire; Animal Science

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Youth & Family Empowerment, Substance Use Disorder and Non-Profit Management
Trainings- 2017-2019 170+ hours of professional development including: Providing
Psychosocial Support to New Americans, EAGALA & the 12-step Model, Wraparound
Coordinator Training, Youth Summit 2019, Stigma Across Cultures, Initial Training on
Addiction & Recovery, Building Trauma-Informed Communities, Medicaid
Expansion/Reauthorization Training, Organizing the Community for Prevention, Prevention
Ethics, Motivational Interviewing, Essentials for Childhood; The Prevention Connection,
RENEW Facilitator Training, Non-Prpfit Management, Managing Confidentiality in an
Integrated Practice, and Responding to the Opioid Crisis within the NH Continuum of Care.

CERTIFICATIONS

EAGALA-Certified Equine Specialist - www.eagala.org, since 2012

Youth Mental Health First Aid, USA - certified trainer, since 2018

Advanced Facilitator: NH Listens - UNH Carsey Institute of Public Policy

Teaching the Muiti-Lingual Learner - UNH Center for Teaching Excellence, 2016

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Equine Assisted Learning- group, youth and family facilitator- vmw.equidintuition.com
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York County 4H - volunteer/special programs leader; https://extension.umaine.edu/york/4-h/

Three Rivers Land Trust - volunteer - www.3rlt.org

Former Co-Chair of Strafford County Farm Bureau & NH Farm Bureau Equine Advisory
Board

Former Co-Chair of UNH College Woods Coalition
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CONTRACTOR NAME - NFI North, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Paul Dann Executive Director $228,700 0 0

Luke Reynard Chief Operating Officer $154,000 0 0

Kjisti Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $132,500 0 0

Jennifer Altieri Regional Director $115,000 25% $ 28,750

Jacqueline Davis CME Administrator $ 90,000 100% $ 90,000

Kathleen Abate Asst. CME Administrator $ 92,600 100% $ 92,600

Kaitlyn Deveau Program Director - Fast Forward $ 86,570 100% $ 86,570

Julie Perron Program Director - Tr-ECC $ 76,000 100% $ 76,000

Melissa Davis Program Director - Early Childhood $ 73,500 100% $ 73,500
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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Dtrtctor

June 13. 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor#: 177575-B001) for the provision of
Care Management Entity services and.Enhanced Care Coordination through the Families and
Systems Together Forward program, by Increasing the total price limitation by $900,000 from
$4,762,160 to $5,662,160 with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2023,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 16% Federal Funds. 84% General Funds. ■

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item
#39B, amended on September 20, 2018, item #20. amended on June 10, 2020, item #11, and
most recently amended on June 2, 2021, item #31.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line itercis.within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is bolster the care through Care Management Entity sennces
by adding supports for Enhanced Care Coordination to serve families with youth ages zero (0)
through six (6) who have wrious emotional disturbance and a history of high utilization of
behavioral health sen/ices, the integration of Enhanced Care Coordination Into the existing Care
Management Entity services will allow for care to be administered to children, youth, and young
adults zero (0) through twenty-one (21). The services provided include:

•  Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

Wraparound Coordination.

Wraparound Coordinator (raining and coachir^.
Wraparound team meeting attendance.

Youth peer support.

Family peer support.

Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth receiving
services and their families.

Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
blllable services.

Approximately 1000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.
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Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged zero (0) through twenty-one (21).
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of severe emotional disturbance
(SED). and at risk of multi-agency Involvement. Through FAST Fonward, Transitional Residential
Enhance Care Coordination, and the Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination these
children, youth, and their families can be served in their home communities, and attending their
community's school program. Outcomes of a high Fidelity Wraparound program include: increased
positive social, academic, and behavioral outcomes, increase early identification and
interventions, and community connectedness for children, youth, and families; decreased out of
home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased caregiver
capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New
Hampshire to service the described population in this manner.

The Department will monitor services using the following performance measures:

95% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive the Child and
Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment tool, which is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Forward engagements.

60% of children, youth and young adults and their families are assessed uising the Youth
Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TNIRS) assessment tools.

100% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive completed plans of
care in FAST Fonvard. Transitional Residential Enhance Care Coordination, and the Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination.

95% of child, youth and young adults and their families are assessed using the Child Weli-

Being Scale while enrolled in the Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination prc^ram.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the contract agreement, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
of services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and Governor and Council approval.
The Department is riot exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with
children and youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available
to them in their communities to meet the challenges presented by mental illness! Further, the
Department may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F. RSA 135: F is statutorily in effect to
increase service effectiveness and improve outcomes for children with behavioral health
challenges and their caretakers, reduce the cost of providing services by leveraging funding
sources other than general funds, reducing the need for costly out-of-home placerhents. and
reducing duplication across agencies, and coordinate care for children involved in multiple
systems.and children at risk of court Involvement and out-of-home placement.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

TVie Department of Health and Human Servicet'Mistion it to join communiliet and fomUiet
in providing oppertunitiei for eitizem to ochxtve- health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HKS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DiV, BUR FOR

CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM OF CARE

100% Oonoral Funds

Vendor Name; NFI North. Inc Vendors 17757&-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

• 2018 072-509073 Contracts for Proflram Services - 92102100 $6,000.00 $0.00 •  $6,000.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92102053 $91,160.00 $0.00 $91,160.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92102053 $420,000.00 $0.00 $420,000.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $765,000.00 $0.00 $765,000.00

2021. 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

2022 102-500731" Contracts for Program Services 92102053' ,  $1,150,000,00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $1,150,000,00 SO. 00 $1,150,000.00

Sub Total $4,752,160.00 $0.00 $4,752,160.00

Overall Total 2053 $4,752,160.00 $0.00 $4.752.160.00

05495-094-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL.

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL. ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS

100% Other Funds (ARPA)

Vendor Name: NFI North. lnc Vendors 177575-8001

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services - 00FRF602PH9511A $0.00 $126,500.00 $128,500.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 00FRF602PH9511A $0.00 $771,500.00 $771,500.00

Sub Total SO.OO $900,000.00 $900,000.00

$0.001 $900,000.001 $900.000.001Sub Total

Overall Total 2465 $0.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00

TOTAL $4,752,160.00 $900,000.00 $5,652,160.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Care Management Entity Sen/ices for FAST Forward contract is by and between
the State of .New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
NFI North. Inc. ('the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #398), as amended on September 20, 2018 (Item #20), as amended on June 10,
2020, (Item #11), and as amended June 2, 2021 (Item #31). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation or modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,652,160

2. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #2, Scope of Services by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit A
Amendment #4, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 8 - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in
its entirety with Exhibit 8 Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #2 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #4,.
which attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit 8-6 Amendment #3 SPY 2022 Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 8-6
Amendment #4 SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit 8-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit 8-7
Amendment #4 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Modify Standard Exhibits D-H by replacing in its entirety with Standard Exhibit D,
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS, through
Standard Exhibit H. CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE,
which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Standard Exhibit J by replacing in its entirety with Standard Exhibits J, CERTIFICATION
REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT
(PFATA) COMPLIANCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

fU)
NFI North Inc Cor^tractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFP.2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01.A04 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

6/11/2022

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

t  by;

[ Uhfl. S'
^>~ENC»SB04C«M42..

Name: Katja s. Fox

Title: oi rector

6/9/2022

Date

NFI North, Inc.r~0ecuS>9A«tf by:
PriuL (/. fU)

Name: l. oann, Pho
Title: executive Director

NFI North. Inc.

RFP.2018-DBH-02-CAReM-01-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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; The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
. execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

0«cuStgn«d b*;

6/13/2022 I
.7«87a«»*4m4ao„

Date Name:'*o'>y" Guarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFI North. Inc. A.S-1.2

RFP-2018-DBH-02.CAREM.01.A04 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Ameridment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally and linguistically competent, and community based.

1.3. The Contracloj must provide Care Management Entity services, statewide, for
families with children, youth or young adults ages five (5) through age twenty-
one (21) years who have Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and who are
enrolled in the FAST Forward program as required by NH RSA 135-F:4, Duties
of Commissioner of the Department of Health & Human Services
(http://gencourt.stale.nh.us/rsa/html/x/135-f/135-f-mrg.htm)

1.4. The Contractor must provide Enhanced Care Coordination (ECC) to children
ages zero (0) through age six (6) and their families, caregivers in congruence
with the Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health Program to address age-
specific mental and behavioral health needs of at-risk young children and their
caregivers.

1.5. The Contractor shall work with service providers that provide support for
children, youth, young adults and their families, when applicable, including, but
not limited to:

1.5.1. Community Mental Health Centers contracted with the Department.

1.5.2. Peer Support Agencies.

1.5.3. School districts.

1.5.4. Family resource centers.

1.5.5. Pre-schools.

1.5.6. Day care centers.

1.5.7. Family Centered Early Supports and Services agencies.

1.5.8. Other Care Management entities contracted with DHHS.

1.6. The Contractor shall comply with all provisions listed in this contract as well as
all applicable Department policies and procedures, including the Care
Management Entity Program, Policy and Practice Manual as provided by the
Department.

1.7. The Contractor shall have a data system that meets the federal requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and has the
ability to bill Medicaid.-

1.8. FAST Forward Program
f(i?

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFA-2C2O-D8H-02-CAREM-0i-A04 Page 1 oft 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment U4

1.8.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services, statewide,
for children, youth, and young adults ages five (5) to twenty-one (21) with
Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and their families who meet
eligibility criteria for, or are enrolled in, the FAST Forward program, in
accordance with the Department's FAST Forward Program Policy and
Practice Manual, as provided by the Department, and as required by NH
RSA 135-F:4, Duties of Commissioner of the Department of Health &
Human Services.

1.8.2. The Contractor shall provide services that include, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1. Family and youth peer support service's.

1.8.2.2. Provision of customized goods and services.

1.8.2.3. Individual Service Options (ISO) In-home services.

1.8.2.4. Wraparound services provided through Wraparound Coordinators in
. accordance with the NH Wraparound Model and System of Care
core values, which include:

1.8.2.4.1. Being family- driven and youth-driven.

1.8.2.4.2. Coordinating community-based services.

1.8.2.4.3. Being culturally and linguistically competent.

1.8.2.4.4. Providing traurria-informed care.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with other Care Management
Entity contracted with the Department to maintain continuity of care for
children, youth and young adults and their families, in areas regarding:

1.8.3.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

1.8.3.2. Instances of the child, youth, or young adult and the family relocating
to another covered region.

1.8.3.3. Instances of acute psychiatric hospitalization becoming a medical
necessity for a child, youth, or young adult.

1.8.3.4. Instances of a system level collaboration being necessary due to a
child, youth, or young adult experiencing high-risk needs.

1.8.4. The Contractor shall provide Intensive In-Home services which may
include Individual Services Options (ISO) In-home services, in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6339, which include, but
are not limited to:

1.8.4.1. Crisis support.

1.8.4.2. Intensive behavioral supports

1.8.4.3. Planned and emergency respite.

PUD
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1.8.5. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools to conduct assessments,

as required by the Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.5.1. The Youth Progress Rating Scale (VPS), also known as outcome
rating scale (ORS), which is a quantitative youth arid family self-
report survey. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.8.5.1.1. The assessment is conducted or facilitated by the
CME's FAST Forward Coordinator.

1.8.5.1.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

.  1.8.5.1.3. The original responses are forwarded to the FAST
Fonward Program Manager.

1.8.5.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS), which is a survey of the
family and youth administered at the conclusion of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.8.5.2.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator.

1.8.5.2.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

1.8.5.2.3. The original responses are stored to be reviewed by
the Department's to FAST Forward Program Manager.

1.8.5.3. The Children and Adolescent Needs arid Strengths (CANS) tool,
which shall be completed and reviewed upon beginning services
and at a minimum of every three (3) months to measure the
child, youth, or young adult and family's needs and strengths. The
Contractor shall:

1.8.5.3.1. Complete the CANS assessmerit when it is not
completed by the child, youth, or young adult's
clinician.

1.8.5.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
family's case record.

1.8.5.3.3. Provide the original assessment to the Department's
FAST Forward Program Manager.

1.8.6. The Contractor shall ensure case documents are available to the

Department to allow the FAST Forward Program Manager to complete
a Document Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case fill
content.

1.9. Residential Treatment Oversight
,—o»
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1.9.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment oversight, as directed by
the Department, to provide continuity of care for children, youth and young
adults who require residential treatment to ensure successful and timely
transitions.

1.9.2. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other
Care Management Entities contracted by the Department to maintain
continuity of care for children, youth, and young adults who require
residential -treatment and to ensure statewide coverage, and in areas
regarding;

1.9.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

1.9.2.2. Instances of child, youth, or young adult and family relocations into
another covered region.

1.9.2.3. Instances of children, youths, or young adults meeting medical
necessity for acute psychiatric hospitalization.

1.9.2.4. Instances of children, youths, or young adults experiencing high-risk
needs that require a system level collaboration.

1.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide residential treatrrient
oversight within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date to:

1.9.3.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the length pf
stay in the residential treatment facility.

1.9.3.2. Ensure successful transitions back to the community.

1.9.4. The Contractor shall accept referrals for residential treatment oversight
services, upon Department approval, from:

1.9.4.1. Hospitals.

1.9.4.2. Managed Care Organizations (MCO)..

1.9.4.3. Other behavioral health providers.

1.9.5. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment oversight services
include, but are not limited to:

1.9.5.1. Discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the needs of
the child, youth, or young adult and their farriily.

1.9.5.2. Ensuring family and youth voice and choice is central during
treatment.

1.9.5.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
individual needing residential treatment services.

1.9.5.4. Ensuring discharge plans are reflective of the appropriate level of
care for the child, youth, or young adult; are realistic; and are
achievable.
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1.9.5.5. Attending all pertinent treatment team meetings at the residential
treatment facility and advocating for the child, youth, or young adult
and their family.

1.9.5.6. Providing coordination for any referrals for services that will be
heeded to support the transition of the child, youth, or young adult
from a residential treatment back to the family home.

1.9.5.7; Referring the family to supportive services in their communities,
which may include but are not limited to family peer support groups.

1.9.5.8. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

1.9.5.9. Providing documentation, if applicable, for the child, youth, or young
adult who has court-involvement, in accordance with NH Revised
Statutes Annotated (RSA) 169-B:19 or RSA 169-D:19.

1.9.5.10. Ensuring the treatment recommendations are attainable within the
• community and the home setting by the caregiver If discharging a
child, youth, or young adult to the home or community based
placement.

1.9.6. . For any child, youth, or young adult who has an open Division for Children!
Youth, and Families (DCYF) case (Child Protective Services (CPS) or
Juvenile Justice System (JJS) and is involved in the court system, and is
enrolled in the CME or FAST Forward by the Contractor, the Contractor
shall;

1.9.6.1. Provide results of the Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths
(CANS) assessment and the Plan of Care (POC) to the court.

1.9.6.2. Provide any recommendation for treatment and supportive services
that will benefit the child, youth or young adult to the court.

1.9.6.3. Provide progress reports to the court in accordance with court
hearings for each child, youth and young adult.

1.9.7. The Contractor shall ensure all reports and plans of care submitted for
court review are:

1.9.7.1. Submitted in accordance with RSA 169-B 5a, RSA 169-C 12-b .and
RSA 169-D4-a, with copies forwarded to the assigned Child
Protective Service Worker and all other appropriate parties.

1.9.7.2. Clear, understandable and free of jargon.

1.9.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other stakeholders to:

1.9.8.1. Develop outcome measures for children, youth and young adults
who utilize residential treatment.
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1.9.8.2. Incorporate the outcome measures into the Contractor's evaluation
plan of targeted residential treatment levels of care.

1.10. Psychiatric Hospitalizatlon Oversight

1.10.1. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight for
children, youth and young adults admitted to an acute psychiatric hospital
who need assistance to successfully transition to a family home or
residential care in a timely manner, as defined by the family and by medical
necessity.

1.10.2. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight services
to ensure farp.ily and youth voice and choice are present during treatments
and that treatments are relevant to the issue that led to the hospitalization.
The Contractor shall:

1.10.2.1. Attend all treatment team meetings at the hospital in which the child
or youth is receiving services.

1.10.2.2. Ensure discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the
needs of the family.

1.10.2.3. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home, if discharging to the home.

1.10.2.4. Ensure discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care

1.10.2.5. Coordinate referrals for services and supports needed to support the
individual's transitions

1.10.3. The Contractor shall prioritize oversight for children, youth and young
adults who:

1.10.3.1. Do not achieve the goal of timely discharge or transition based upon
clinical necessity.

1.10.3.2. Have rapid or chronic re-admissions that do not go beyond clinical
necessity but are frequent in nature.

1.10.4. The Contractor shall work with the Department and hospital to assess
instances where the child, youth or young adult may benefit from oversight,
but may not meet the criteria as stated in Paragraph 1.10.3, which may
include but are not limited to:

1.10.4.1. Involuntary versus voluntary hospitalization.

1.10.4.2. Multi-system involvement.

1.10.5. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide psychiatric hospitalization
oversight no later than ninety (90) days from the contract effective dale in

• order to:

T.I0.5.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the
stay in the psychiatric hospital.
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1.10.5.2. Ensure successful transitions to residential treatment facilities or
back to the communities.

1:10.6. The Contractor shall accept referrals from the other Care Management
Entity (CME) for psychiatric hospilalization oversight services, when the
other CME has a conflict, or in instances when continuity of care will take
priority.

1.10.7. The Contractor shall ensure that psychiatric oversight services include, but
are not limited to;

1.10.7.1. Discharge and transition planning that is realistic and meets the need
of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

1.10.7.2. Ensuring the child, youth, or young adult and their family's voice and
choice is present during treatment.

1.10.7.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
hospitalization.

1.10.7.4. Ensuring discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care; are
realistic; and are achievable.

1.10.7.5. Ensuring that the child, youth, or young adult is assessed-for the
need of residential treatment, when indicated!

1.10.7.6. Assisting the hospital with referrals to an assessor for residential
treatment if necessary.

1.10.7.7. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home when discharging to the home.

1.10.7.8. Attending all treatment team meetings at the hospital and advocating
for the child, youth or young adult and their family's needs.

1.10.7.9. Providing support and coordinating referrals for services" and
supports needed for transitioning the child, youth or young adult.

1.10.7.10.Connecting the family to supportive services in the community, which
may include, but is not limited to family peer support groups.

1.10.7.11.Assisting the family with applying for Medicald coverage, as
applicable and needed.

1.11. Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination

1.11.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services for young
children (ages 0-6), with Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) or at-risk
for SED, who meet eligibility criteria for, or are enrolled in, the Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination, and their families, statewide, in
accordance with the Department's CME Program Policy and Practice
Manual, as provided by the Department and as it may be amended.

Q
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1.11.2. The Contractor shall provide Enhanced Care Coordination services that
adhere to System of Care core values, which include:

1.11.2.1. Being family-driven and youth-driven.

1.11.2.2. Coordinating community-based services.

1.11.2.3. Being culturally and linguistically competent.

1.11.2.4. Providing trauma-informed care.

1.11.3. The Contractor shall provide Enhanced Care Coordination services
through Wraparound Coordinators in'accordance with the NH Wraparound
Model and use elements of NH Wraparound model to address the
following, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.11.3.1. Access to treatment.

1.11.3.2. Social Determinants of Health (SDOH).

1.11.3.3. Other support needs, including but not limited to:

1.11.3.3.1. Transportation.

1.11.3.3.2. Quality childcare.

1.11.3.3.3. Accessing treatment for the caregiver as indicated.

1.11.4. The Contractor shall provide referral pathways to Department-approved
services and treatment options to improve the child-caregiver relationship
using evidence-based treatment options or other Department-approved
models to address the child's treatment needs and relationship work
between infant/child and caregiver when necessary and appropriate, which
include but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Child-Parent Psychotherapy treatment.

1.11.4.2. Home visiting services.

1.11.4.3. Healthy Families America.

1.11.4.4. Nurturing Parent.

1.11.5. When indicated by the Plan of Care and approved by the Department, the
Contractor shall provide referrals to services, including , but not limited to:

1.11.5.1. Family peer support services.

1.11.5.2. .Youth peer support sen/ices.

1.11.5.3. Customizable goods and services.

1.11.6. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with other Care Management
Entities contracted with the Department to maintain continuity of care for
children, as well as their caregivers, in areas regarding:
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1.11.6.1. Regional coverage of Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination
services.

1.11.6.2. Instances of the young child, child, youth, or young adult and the
family relocation to another covered region.

1.11.6.3. Instances of a system level collaboration being necessary due to a
child experiencing high-risk needs.

1.11.7. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools to conduct assessments

as required by the Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.11.7.1. Child Weil-Being Scale, an index scale that informs needs and
outcomes.

1.11.7.2. World Health Organization - Five Well-Being Index (WHO-5).

1.11.7.3. Child Adolescent .Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool, which shall be
completed and reviewed upon beginning services and at a minimum
of every three (3) months to measure the progress of the young child,
child, youth or young adult and assess family's needs and strengths.
The Contractor shall:

1.11.7.3.1. Complete the CANS assessment when it is not
completed by the child's support team;

1.11.7.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
family's case record.

1.11.7.3.3. Provide the original baseline assessment to the
Individuals that will utilize information for outcome

measurement and/or case planning.

1.11.7.3.4.Complete the Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS),
which is a survey of.the family and youth administered
at the conclusion of each Wraparound Team Meeting.

1.11.7.3.5. Ensure case documents are available to the provider's
program managers in order to complete a Document
Review Measure (DRM), a fidelity tool referenced in
the CME Program, Policy and Practice Manual.

1.11.8. The Contractor shall provide training and coaching support, as required by
the Department to ensure the practice is:

1.11.8.1. Continually improved:

1.11.8.2. Consistent;

1.11.8.3. Maintaining fidelity to the program;

1.11.8.4. Providing better outcomes for families; and

1.11.8.5. Optimizing workforce capacity.
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1.11.9. The Contractor shall provide training and/or support to the following
evidence based practices or tools to be used statewide, including but not
limited to:

1.11.9.1. Qualified clinicians in using the Diagnostic Classification of Mental
Health and Developmental Disorders of Infancy and Early Childhood
manual (DC 0-5 manual).

1.11.9.2. Providing a "Training of Trainers" for the DC 0-5 manual.

1.11.9.3. NH Wraparound.

1.11.9.4. Administration of the evaluation tools required.

1.11.10. The Contractor shall support the development of Child-Parent
Psychotherapy (CPP) statewide to include providing CPP training and
support to qualified clinicians.

1.12. Evaluation and Site Review

1.12.1. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team that provides assistance
with:

1.12.1.1. Obtaining data from any contracted care management entity.

1.12.1.2. Understanding and sharing evaluative data with the Department and
any other care management entity of children, youth and young
adults and their families who are served within the System of Care in
order to enhance the ability to communicate outcomes to the
Department and other System of Care stakeholders in alignment with
RSA 135;F, System of Care for Children's Mental Health.

1.12.2. The Contractor shall ensure the evaluation team provides information that
includes, but is not limited to:

1.12.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identified and aggregate
client- level data from sources referenced by the Department.

1.12.2.2. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for
Department use, which may include but is not limited to:

1.12.2.2.1. Service Utilization Data.

1.12.2.2.2. Number of youth remaining in the community
compared to the number of youth needing to access
residential treatment.

1.12.2.2.3. Length of stay in residential treatment outcomes and
reporting

1.12.3. The Contractor shall provide a leadership team with a minimum of three
(3) members who shall participates in the Department's annual site review
process, which includes, but is not limited to: y—04
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1.12.3.1. Reviewing program services for twenty percent (20%) of participants
served annually for compliance with all Items outlined in the
agreement, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.12.3.1.1. Eligibility and re-eligibility assessments.

1.12.3.1.2. Plan of care.

1.12.3.1.3. Person Centered Planning practices.

1.12.3.1.4. Conflict of interest issues.

1.12.3.1.5. Setting requirements.

1.12.3.1.6. Provider qualifications.

1.12.3.2. Collaborating with the Department to address areas that requirement
improvement as identified during the site review, which includes, but
is not limited to, creating a plan that outlines the activities for
improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

1.12.3.3. Collaborating with the Department to implement the plan for
improvement in subparagraph 1.12.3.2., and reporting on all related
activities until evidence of improvement is achieved.

1.12.3.4. Providing review of documentation and outcome data.

1.12.3.5. Conducting anonymous survey questionnaires for children, youth
and young adults as well as their families.

1.12.3.6. Providing the results of the survey questionnaires to the Department.

1.12.3.7. Facilitating interviews with entities who may include, but are not
limited to:

1.12.3.7.1.Children, youth and young adults as well as their
families.

1.12.3.7.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

1.12.3.7.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

1.12.3.7.4. Program Director.

2. Reporting

2.1.The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on program services provided,
ensuring data is de-identifted and in the aggregate, including but not limited to:

2.1.1. Census data.

2.1.2. Provisions of services or sen/ice utilization data.

2.1.3. Number of individuals admitted to residential treatment services.

2.1.4. Discharge numbers.

2.1.5. Discharge reasons.

D5
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2.1.6. Patient residential Zip code.

2.1.7. Demographics of individuals served including, but not limited to;

2.1.8. Gender.

2.1.9. Age.

2.2.The Contractor shall ensure the Evaluation Team as outlined in Paragraph 1.12,
submits quarterly reports and presents virtually or in-person to the Department on
the following:

2.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes.

2.2.2. De-identified and aggregate client-level data from sources referenced from
the Department.

2.2.3. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for Department
purposes, including but not limited to:

.  2.2.3.1. Service Utilization Data.

2.2.3.2. Acute Psychiatric Hospitalization reports.

2.2.3.3. Number of youth remaining in community comparatively to the
number of youth needing to access residential treatment.

2.2.4. Gap analysis.

3. Performance wieasTires
3.1.The Contractor shall ensure:

3.1.1. The" CANS assessment tool is used with -psychiatric and residential
oversight, FAST Forward, and Early Childhood Enhanced Care
Coordination engagements with 95% of engaged children, youth and young
adults as well as their families.

3.1.2. The Child Well-being Scale is used with 95% of families engaged in Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination.

3.1.3. The the Youth Progress Scale (VPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale
(TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of engaged
children/youth/young adults and their families.

3.1.4. FAST Forward plans of care are completed with 100% of engaged children,
youth and young adults as well as their families.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the^galth
Insurance Portability and .Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, in
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accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHH'S Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as^to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such, other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures. /—03
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5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities,and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of,the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with

.  all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for seig^ices
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a ^

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendmenl #4 Contractor Initials v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and, which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the , terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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'  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B Amendment #4

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit 8 Amendment #2, Scope
of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. 84% General funds.

2.2. 16% AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) AS AWARDED FROM THE
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE FOR EMERGENCY RELIEF AND RECOVERY

(GOFERR), ARP FRF funds under Section 602 (c)(1 )(A).

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for FAST Forward Program services
provided to Individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows :

3.1. The Contractor shall first bill the clients' other insurance or payor sources.

3.2. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, the Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on
the Fee for . Service (FFS) schedule for the following services, with prior
authorization from the Department:

3.2.1. Community-based wrap-around services.

3.2.2. Family peer support, self-help/peer services

3.2.3. Youth peer support, self-help, peer services.

3.2.4. Mental health services not otherwise specified.

3.2.5. Respite care-In the home.

3.2.6. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, child, non-theraoeutic.

3.2.7. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, therapeutic, child.

3.2.8. Respite care, not in the home, group home, child, per diem.

3.3. The Department will approve the use of the necessary ISO code(s) for Medicaid
billing.

3.4. The Contractor agrees that provided services will be billed to Medicaid following
the codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

3.5. For FAST Forward Program services provided to individuals that are not billable to
other insurance or payors, or Medicaid, the Contractor shall bill using the budget
line item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022
Budget, Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY 2023 Budget, Amendment #4 as
follows:

3.5.1. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for
the Medicaid eligible services provided. The current Medicaid rate will be paid
in accordance with the current, publically posted Children's Mental Health
HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule.

{m
NFI North, Inc. ExNbil B Amendmenl Contractor Initiab,
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^  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B Amendment #4

3.5.2. The Contractor's billings to the Department shall be made monthly and are
not to exceed the Billing for Uninsured line Item as specified In Exhibit 8-6
SFY 2022 Budget. Arnendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY 2023 Budget,
Amendment #4.

3 6. For the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified in Exhibit B-6
SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7
SFY 2023 Budget, Amendment #4 the Contractor shall bill and seek
reimbursement for services provided to individuals pursuant to this Agreement as
follows:

3.6.1. For Psychiatric Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate
of $70.00 per day up to a five day maximum per hospitalization tillable for the
length of enrollment.

3.6.2. For Residential Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate
of $70.00 per day up to a three day maximum per week for the length of
enrollment.

3.6.3. For Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination services, the Contractor
shall be paid a daily rate of $70.00 per day up to a three day maximum per
week for the length of enrollment.

3.7. The Contractor's biljings to the Department shall be made monthly and are not to
exceed the Billing-for Uninsured line item as specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022
Budget. Amendment #4, Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit 8-7 SFY 2023
Budget, Amendment #4.

4. Except for the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified Exhibit B-6
SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY
2023 Budget, Amendment #4shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, which shall not exceed the
approved line items specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit
B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY 2023 Budget. Amendment #4. Invoicing for
these line items of the approved budget shall be net any other revenue received towards
the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the ten
(10th) day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the
invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Departnlent in order to initiate payment.

5.1. Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:

5.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.2.2. Cost center reports

NFI North, Inc. Exhtbil B Amertdmeni Coniractor Initials
6/9/2022
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^  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B Amendment #4

5.2.3. Profit and loss report

5.2.4. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

5.3. The State shall make payment to the Coritractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

5.4. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review,
as requested.

5.5. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfredsen@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports, documentation, or
budgets as identified in Exhibit A Amendment #2. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit
8 Amendment #2 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

9. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, rtiay be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and. Executive Council.

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if any of
the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most
recently completed fiscal year.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit B Amendment #4

•  10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations
receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security
and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual
financial audit.

10.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative-Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The Contractor shall submit quarterly
progress reports on the status of implementation of the corrective action
plan.

10.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the
close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

10.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000
from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding
source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits
performed by an independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment
determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

10:5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it
is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held
liable for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the
Department all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken, or which have been disallowed because of such an exception

FUD
NFI North, Inc. Exhibii B Amendment »4 Contractor InHJals
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tt Requirement Description
Fund

Source
Rate/Contract amounts^

Fast Forward Services"

1
Medicaid Benefit

enrolled

HCBS Benefit
with SA

Medicaid

Current Children's Mental Health

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink in Cell 1-6)

. n nOfi Op-' m a 0 Cell;1^

Link to Current Children's Mental Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule:

httDs://nhmmis.nh.aov/Dortals/wDs/wcm/connect/563ed7804c

87b06d8d46ffacbe5ab710/2020+Childrens+Mental+Health+H
2

Non Medicaid Benefit

enrolled kids

Medicaid billing
under ISO auth.

(H0041)
Medicaid $70.00/day

3
All Medicaid covered

children

Intensive In

home supports-
using ISO

authorization

(H0041)

Medicaid
SSO/day

CBS+Medlcaid+Rate+Schedule.Ddf?MOD=AJ PERES

Bill to Contract
SPY 2022

Funds

SFY 2023

Funds

4

Uninsured or under

insured youth who
meet Fast Forward

eliqibililv

Non Medicaid

billable

State

General

Fund

dollars

Follows Children's Mental Health

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink In Cell 1-6.)

$230,000

inclusive of the

Amount of

Funding in
Exhibit B-6

Amendment UA

SFY 2022

Budget

5^5.000
inclusive of

the Amount

of Funding in
Exhibit B-7

Amendment

#4 SFY 2023

Budget

-

-

5

Nori-Medicaid youth
until enrolled in

Medicaid

BlOIng for all
services within

FAST Forward

array using youth
Invoice

State

General

Fund

dollars

Follows both Children's Mental

Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule (Hyperlink in Cell 1-6)
and a payment of the $60.00 per

day for intensive irvhome
services (If applicable).

6

Non Medicaid billable

Customizable Goods

and Sen/ices

Allowable

Customizable

Goods and

Services

State

General

Fund

dollars

Billed to contract per the Fast
Fonvard Program Manual

guidelines for allowable uses.
Use vouth Invoice.

Enhanced Care Coordination

7

Psychiatric Oversight
- TRECC Psych

Up to 5 days per
hospitalization

billable

.State
General

Fund

dollars

$70.(X)/day, up to a maximum of
five (5) days while enrolled.

8
Residential Oversight
-TRECC Residential

Up to 3,days per
week for

treatment

episode

State

General

Fund
Dollars

$70.00/day. up to a maximum of
three (3) days per week while

enrolled.

-09

PO)
NFI North. Inc.
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Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4

Earty Childhood- Up to 3 days per Stale S70.00/day. up to a maximum of
9 Enhanced Care week for General . three (3) days per week while

Coordination treatment Fund enroDed.

episode Dollars
1  r

% a

NFI North. Inc.
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*  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Onig-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to "have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and'sut)-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment; Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

^ Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be takeii against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an.ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon ernployees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the.workplace;
1.3. flaking it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the graiit, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an.employee or othenwise receiving actual notice'of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

PUD
Exhibit D - Certification fegarding Drug Free Vendor Initials^

Workplace Requirements 6/9/2022
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if ^ere are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: NFi North, inc

0«cuSl9n*d by;

i. fhS)6/9/2022

, Dale Name;'^^^^'"' • oann, Pho
Title. Executive Director

Exhibit D - Certincatron regarding Drug Free • Vendor Initials
{ia

Workplace Requirements 6/9/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of (he General Provisions execute the foliowing Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES.- CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate, applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciric mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sut>awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certlHcation is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was.placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 5100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: NFi North, inc.'

C—OMuSljgncd by;
pw. i dtUAJUL, fU)

Date rnmnm-: Oann, Pho-

Executive Director

-D5
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By-signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. the certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the

■ attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lowier tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligiliility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
•from the covered transaction, unless it knov/s that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but Is not required to. check the Nbnprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of_re^cords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knov/ledge and

PO)
Exhibit f - Certification RegardioQ Debarment, Suspension Contractor initials''—■■ ■ ■■
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information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which Is normaiiy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant in a -
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its -
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three>year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted.of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public tran^ction; violation of Federal or State antitrust

'  statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery.'bribery, falslHcatlon or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applioation/pmposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. 6y signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract).'the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certificatioh Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: nfi North, Inc.

>Do«uSieMdby:

6/9/2022

Dili Oann, Pho

Executive Director

DocuSioMd by:

I poJuL fU)

Exhibit F - Ceitification Regarding Dobannent. Suspension Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscrimination requirements, vA^ich may include:
- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (A2 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) v/hich adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited frorii discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
goverriment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment v/ide suspension or
debarment.

[?U)Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to.comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: nfi North, inc.

by:

f Aut i, pAWA,; ptcP6/9/2022

Date Na^V^auT'C"; Oann, Pho
Title. Executive Director

[0Exhibit G

Contractor Initials
CwiiTatien ol ComptiariMMriai r*qUr«m«nu pbfUMnc NondUvMnatien. Eqwil cf F*ia>-e«»*d Ogwizaiim

•rtdWNjtMfcwprotKllwii
Vi7n4 6/9/2022
R«v. toni/i4 Page 2 of 2 Date



OtKuSlgn Envelope 10: EAFO636J-724(M92E-«E0F-F496EF097354

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmentai Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by ah entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the sen/ices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medica.id funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: NFI North, inc.

-0Mu$lgM4 by:

(/. PrU/LlL; fU)6/9/2022

Date Dann, PhD

Title. Executive Director

Exhibit H-Certification Regarding Contractor Initials.
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 6/9/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25,Q00 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sul>-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is suliject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the follovnng information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity .
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-262,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: NFi North, inc.

6/9/2022 I PmL i. P(cP
Biii tJ-nn. Phli

Executive Director

ExhibA J - Cerltftcetion Regarding (he Federal Funding Contractor Initiab
Jjl
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. ■. ■

04-3161042
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHVl 10713
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STATE OK NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AN'D HUMAN SERVICES

DiViSlON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

t29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27U9S4<l I-800-8S2-334S Evi. 9S44

Fttj: 603 27I-4JJ2 TOO Acccij: I-800-735-2964 «mv.dhhj.nh.gov

April 26. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enier into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI Norih. Inc. (Vendor
#177575-8001). Contoocook. NH. for the provision of Care Management Entity sen/ices for the
FAST Forward program, by exercising a contract renewal option, increasing the price limitation
by $2,300,000 from $2,452,160 to 4.752.160 and by extending the completion date from June 30.
2021 to June 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21. 2017, item
#398. It-was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20.2016,
item #20. and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 10, 2020,
item #11.

Funds are anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office. If needed and justified.

05-95-92-921010-i2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
iSVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 072-509073
Grants-

Federal
92102100 $6,000 $0 $6,000

2018 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 S91.160 $0 $91,160

2019 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

,92102053 $420,000 $0 $420,000

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $785,000 $0 $785,000

The Dtpoftment of Heollh ond Human Servictt'MMon ii lololn conimuiiitiet ond familiet
in providing opporluniliet for eititens lo ne/iiciw heollh ond indepeiidenee.
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 *1.150.000 SO $1,150,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 *0 $1,150,000 51,150.000

2023 102-500731

Contracts for
Progrem
Services

92102053 *0 $1,150,000 *1.150.000

Total $2,452,160 $2,300,000 $4,752,160

EXPLANATION

This rdqudst Is Sold Source because Amendment #2 of this contract was approved as
sole source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be (at)eled as so!e source.
The Contractor is uniquely qualified to provide these services as Senate Bill ^A, of the 2019
Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA 135;F to require a Care Management Entity to
provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North is one of two Care Management Entities In the
State.

The purpose of this request is to continue to support the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program, which include, but are not limited to:

Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

Wraparound Coordination..

Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

Wraparound team meeting attendance.

Provision of Youth peer support.

Provision of Family Peer Support.

Oetermination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other nofv
Medicaid biliabte service's.

Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21),
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at risk o.f mul^
agency involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be
served in their.home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending, their
community's school program. Outcomes of a high fKlelity Wraparour^d program include, but are
not limited to: Increased positive social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community
connectedness for children, youth, and families; decreased out of home, school, and community
placements (and duration of such); increaaed careglver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and
access to programs and supports that are uniquely tailored to each child and family's culture,
strengths, end goals. This Is a unique program in New Hampshire to service the'described
population In this manner.
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Qualifying children and youth are those who are eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through
twenty-one (21), experiencing difTicuUiee in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances; and at risk of multi-agency involvement. Approximately 325 individuals and
approximately 1,100 family members will be served from July 1. 2021 to June 30, 2023.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital. Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care vrithln
the Oepartmerrt, which Is required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  95% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive the Child and
Adolescent Needs and Strerjglhs (CANS) assessment tool which Is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Fonward engagements.

•  80% of children, youth and young adults as weP as their families receive the Youth
Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools.

•  i 00% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive completed FAST
Forward plans of care.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the contract, the parlies have the option to extend the
agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
Is exercising Its option to renew services (or two (2) of the two (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available to them in
their communities to meet the challenges that are presented by mental Illness. Further, the
Department may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

/
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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May 15,2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. SunOftu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 0.3301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sewces. Division for/Behavioral Health,
to enter into e Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI. North, trtc. (Vendor
#177575-8001), RO Box 417.'40 Park Lane. ContoocooK. NH 03229 for the provision of Care
Management Entity services for the FAST Forward program, by incredsing the price limttation by
$1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and by ekterxling the completion dale from June 30.
2020 to June 30. 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later. The
original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21. 2017, item #398 and most

■ recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20. 2018. item #20.100%
General Funds.' . .

Funds are available In'lhe following account for Stale Fiscal Years 2020 end 2021. with
the authority to adjust budget line items vriihtn the price limllatton .through the Budget pfficc. if
needed end. justified.

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH'AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUf«AN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV,' BUR FOR CHIL0R6NS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM

State •

Ftocal

. Yoof

I

Class/

Account . .
Claso Title

•Job

Number

Current

■ Budget

Incroaeod

. (Decreased)
'  /^ounl

Roviood

Budget

2016 . 072-509073 Grants-Federal 9.2102100 -  $5,000 ■  $0 $6,000

. 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92-102053 591,160 -  ̂ $91,160'

.2019 102-500731. ■ Cpniracls for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 SO $420,000

2020 102-500.731 'Conl.racls fpr Program Services 92102053 $420,000 $365,000 $785,000

■ 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen'lces '92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Total $937,160 $1,615,000 $2,452,160
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EXPLANATION

This request Is Sold Source because the Department is adding riew ecope requirements
to.the.contract for oversight of psychiatric care and residential treatment. Further, this action adds
(the (.t) |years of additional renewal options to the contract The Contractor ts uniquely qualined to
pr^ide these services as Senate Bill 14. of the 2019 Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA
135;F to require e Care Management Entity to provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North
Is the only Cere Management Entity in the State. NFI North has provided exemplary service
throughout this contract and beyond. The values and principles Ihat NFI North operates under
are In direct alignment with t)^ values ond principles outlined in the reQulrementa for the
Department under RSA 135:F. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by
Governor and Council on'June 21, 2017, item 0398. It was (hen subsequently arhended with
Governor and Courtcil approval on September 20. 2018, item 020.

The purpose of this amendment Is to expand ̂  existing scope of services to Include
enrollment and payment for non-Medicald children, arid youth in the FAST Forward program,
oversight of children and youth in a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST
Forward prograrri and infusion of an increased budget to accommodate the Increased
erirollment, and ac^ptance of referrals for children, youth end families who are Involved with (he-
Division of Children, Youth and Fam.Hies and have en open couri case.

Despite the best Intentions and hard worii of. families and providers, services are often
fragmented and drfficutt to navigate. New Hampshire -is making great progress in addressing
these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program colled FAST Forward. The
FAST Forward program Is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances and their
families, whdse heeds are not met by traditional aervico streams end programs. This Is done by
utilizing a.high fidelity wraparound approa^ lhat Is a definable. Indtvidueliz^, and eUenglhs-'
based planning process that incorporates a child and family, team, and results In a unique set of
services and supports for the child or youlh and their family. The treatment plan is doseiy

. monhored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

Qualifying children end youth are those who are. eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through-
twenty-one (2t); experiencing difficulties In day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances, "end • at risk of multi-agency Involvement. Approximately 325 individuals arid
approximately 1100 more family members wID'be served from Jgly 1,2020 to June 30, 2021.'

Many Npw Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties In day-to
day llfe.d.ue'to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the appropriate
supports when needed. Children end youth'are often placed out of the home In residential
treatmeni facilities, psychiatric hospHals. juvenli.e justice facilities, or daytime progrems.' Many, of
these placements take the children and youth.oi/t of their local schools end communities.

•The. Department will monitor contracted services-using the. following performance
■measures;
•  ' • ' The Contractor must ensure that the Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)

assessment topi is used with psychiatric oversight ancl FAST Forward engagements \mth
95% of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families. •

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Youth Progress Scale (YPS) §nd Team Meeting
Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 60% of engaged

•  chlldren/youth/young adults and their families.
. • The Contractor must ensure that FAST Forward plans of cere are completed with 100%

of engaged children, youth end young adults as well as their families.
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As referenced in Exhibit C>1 of the original contract, the parties have (he option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. One (1) year of
renewal was utilized In Amendment Pi of the'contract. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for orte (1) of the one (1) year available. The Departrhent is also addirtg an
additional three (3) years of renewal through this Amendment #2.

Should the Governor and' Executive Council not authorize this requeet, famillea with-
children and youth who have serious emotional disturbancee may have fewer services available
to them In their communities to meet the challengea thai are presented by mental lilneee. Further.
DHHS may be out of compliance wIthRSA 135:P.

- Aree served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Fund's

Respectfully submlttj

.ori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

77w DitporlmeJit e/ HtolUi end Human Struittt'M'usien U leieifi eenimunilia end fonilia.
in previdiniepperUin'din far tilircnt to ocAin* htoflt* end-indtptndtntt.
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Denis Coulet

ConwiUtioner

May 19.2020

tori A. Shibineice, Commissioner
Depanmerit of Healih and Hunlan Services
Siaic of New Hampshire
129 Pleasani Sireei

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibincuc:, . . '

. This Iciler•fcprcscfits fonnal noiificnjion thai ihc Dcpann>eni of Infonnoiion Technology (OolT)
has oppfovcd your ogcixy's request to amend a cowraci with NFl North, Inc. of Contoocopk, NH as
described below and referenced as Do)T No! 20l8-Ot9B.

The purpose of this anxndmcnt is lo expand the existing scope of services to include enrollment
and payment for non-Medicoid children and youth in the FAST For\sT)rd program, oversight of
children and youth In a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST FoiAvord program
and inclusion of an increased budget to accommodate the increased enrollment, and acccpio'nce of
referrals for children, youth end families who arc involved with il>e Division of Children, Youth
and Families and have an open court case.

This amendment increases"the price limltaiion by SI ,515,000 from $937,160 to 52,452,160 and
e.xtends the completion date from June 30.2020 to June 30. 2021 effective upon Governor nnd
Council approval.

A copy, of this letter should .accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to ihc Govcrnbr and E.xecutivc Council for approval. ' . .

.  i '

Sincerely!

Denis Goulci.

DC/ik

DolT JJ2dl8-069B

cc: Midtael Willioins. IT.Manager, DoIT

"tnnovoUve Uchnologiei Today fof New Hompshire'i Tomorrow"
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEm OP HEALTH AND HUAV^ SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
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AugusMS, 201B

His Excellency. Govemor Christopher t. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House /
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend en existing egreemehi with NFI North, Inc. Vendor #177575-
8001, PO Box 4.t7, 40 Park Lene. Conloocook. NH 03229. for the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program" by incre3sir>g the. price fimltallon by $742,840. from

'■$194,320 to an amount not to exceed $937,160. and iexteriding the contract completion date from'June
30, 2019 to June 30. 2020. effective upon the date of Governor "end (Council epproval Trie original

•contract was approved by Governor ar^d Counci) on June 21, 2017 (Item #398) 1.00% General Funds
Funds are available, in State Fiscal Year (SP.Y) 2018 and SFV 2019, and are anticipated to be

available in SFY 2020 upon the evaiiabilty.and continued appropriation of furtds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances .between State Fiscal Yearp "through the Budget Office
without approval from Governor-and Eieculive Councii, if needed ar^d justified.

06-95-92-9210102053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALtH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILORENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEfri OF CARE

SFY Class/Account Class THIe
Job

Number-
. Current

Amount
.  Increase

-  Amount
Total

Amount

2016 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000 $0 ■ $6.000"

2018 ■  102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 $91,160 ■ $0 $91,160

2019 '  102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services '

92102063 $97,160 ■ $322,840 ' $420,000.

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 SO $420,0X $420',000

Total $194,320 $742.840. $ 937,160
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to incorporate Family Peer Support and Evaluation of the
FAST Forward Program .into this contract and to remove" those items from a separate contract, as
required by HB 517. HB 517 required" the Department to include all wraparound services associated
vyilh the FAST Forward program into one conlract thai are not currently in the Medicaid Slate Plan
amendment. The Medicaid Stale Plan amendment implements the optional I9i5(i) Stale Plan Home
and Commuhily-Sgsed Services (MCBS) benefit for disabled individuals' and requires ihc following
changes:

•  Reduce the funding necessa'ry for the FAST Forward services through this conlract by •
allowing the new Medicaid Benefit .lb "cover some costs. • <

•  Incorporate the scope.of serv'ice from the Family Peer Support contract into this contract
to ensure the contractor is oderaling as a full Care Managcrneht Entity (CME) and bills
the new Medicaid Benefit lor thai service.

•  ' Incorporate the funds for non-Medicaid billable costs associated with, the Family Peer"
•  Support and Family. Leadership scope of service into this contract.

•  Extend this contract for a year.

Funds in this agreement are used for the provision of CME services for the FAST Forward
pfograrh. which include, but arc not limiied to:

•. Pro.vision of Individuar.Scrvlce Optidns flSO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination. ■ . • w

•  . Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  ' Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of Youih peer support.

•  Provision of Family Peer Support.

•  • • Oeterminaliqn of needed customizable goods and services for thp children/youth ,
receiving services and their families. ' . - _

• • • Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and -olher non-Medicaid
■ billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficuHies in .day-to-day life
due to serious embtional 'dlslurbances (SCO) aqd face challenges finding the app'ropriate supports
when .supports are needed. Children "and youth are often placed out of the home In residential
Ireaimenl facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime; programs, fwlany of these •
placements take'ihe children and youlh out of their local schools and communities.

Despi.ie the best inlenllons and-hard work of families and providers, services afe often
fragmented and dlfficull to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress in addressing these
challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The FAST Forward
' program stands for 'families and Sysiems Together and is designed to serve-youth with SED and

their families, whose needs arc not met by traditional service streams and programs. This Is done by
utilizing a high fidelity Wraparound approach which is a definable, individualized, and strengths-based
planning process'that incorporates e child and family team and results in a unique set of services and
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supports for the child or youth end their family, with the plan-closely monitored to'achieve a positive set
of outcomes.

Quatifying children ar^ youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21);
experiencing difficuliies in day-to-day life due to a diagriosis of SEO, and are at risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, the.se children, youth, and their families can be served In their
horrie cbmmuniii.es, while living in their natural homes and attending their comrnunity's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to: increased positive
social, academic, and tMhaviorel outcomes and community connectedness for children, yputh, and
families; decreased out of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased
caregiver capacily/decreased caregiver strain; and access .to programs and supports that aie uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, -strengths, and goals. This is e unique program lit New
Hampshire to service the described population in this rrienner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SEO population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeal use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within the
Oepanment. which Is required to t>e shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option-to ertend for up to two (2) additional yeaf(s). conlingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreemenl of the panles and approval of the Governor and Council. This
amendment requests one (1) year of renewal, leaving one (1) year remaining'

. The Vendor has provided all areas of scope ih'roughbyt the life of the coniract. The FAST
Forward Program has successfully expanded-to serve 'more children due to the Vertdor's-effective
Implementation and management of the programming within the contract. The Vendor has shown a
willingness to be flexible when heeded, but also shown strong procedural - adherence to the
Department's policies and the contractual obligations.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children
and youth with SEO may have fewer services .available -to them in their community and sIMewide to
meet the challenges that mental illness presents them. Mariy of these same families have.struggled to
ftnd supports previously, that meets their complex needs and find themselves without supports that can
effectively meet thpm. If this amendment is not approved, there may be an increase in oul-of-
community and an oul-of-state ptacemeni lor these children and youth, increased involvement with
DCYF. es well as more frequent and longer stays for the.se children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds t)ecome no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,-

KatjaS. Fox .
Oircctor"

Approved by;
Jeffrey A.'Meyers
Commissioner

7>t< Dtpo'riMienl •/ HtoUh pid Human Suvittt'MUtion it to join tontmunitia end femitiu in
t//euiding o^po'funtlicj lor dlixni to eehUvc heotth end indtptnd^nte.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AM) HUMAN SERVICES
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Junes. 2017

His ExceOency, Governor Christopher T. Sunijnu -
and the Honorable Council

State House ' • . '
Concord. Kjew Hampshire 6330,1

REQUESTED ACTION.

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Diviscn (or Behavioral HeaUh to
enter into "an agreement with NFI.North. Inc. Vendpr dl7757i-0OO1. PO Box 417. 40 Park Lahe.
•Corttoocook. NH 03229. in an amount' not lb exceod $194,320. to provide Care Mahagement Entity
senrtces for the FAST Forward-pfogram effective July.1. 2017 or upon the date of .Qovernor'and
Counccl'opproval. whichever Is later, .through June 30.2019. 3% Federal Funds."97% General Furxls.

Funds are aniicipaled io be available lr> SFY 2018 and SffY 2019..upon the availabBlly and
continued appropriation'of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts vrith'm
the price limitation arrt adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and. Executive Council.

05-95-92.9210102053.HEALTH,AND SOCIAL, SERVICES. OEPT.OF HEALTH AND HUfWAN S\^
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILORENS BEHAVRL HLTH. SYSTEM OF CARE

Fiscal

Year.' Glass/Account Class Title . Job Number Total Amount

SFY 18 ' 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000
SFY 18 • 102-500731 Contracts for Propram Services 92102053 .. $91,160
SFY 19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services. •  92102053 $97,160

Total $194,330

EXPLANATION

Funds In this agreement will be used for the.provlslon of Care Management Entity services for
the FAST Forward program, which (fKlude. but are not lirnited to:'■

.• " Provision of IndiVTdual ServiceOplibns (ISO) in-home services.
•  Wraparound Coordination. •
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•  • Wraparound Coordinator training arxl coaching.

•  Wrapar.oundteam meeting attendance.

•  Provi$ion of youth peer support.'

•  Oeterminalion of needed customizable goods and services for the chlldren/yculh
receiving services and Iheir families.

•  . Provision of stipends for customizable good.s and services, and oiher norvMedicaid
billeble services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties In day-to-day life
due (6 serious emotional disturbances end face challenges finding the right-support at the right time.
The children and youth are often placed out of home in residentiial treatment fadlliies. psychiai/ic
hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, pr daytime programs. Many of these placements'take the children
artd youth out of their local schools and commyniiies. Despite the best-intentions and hard wo.dc of
families and providers, aehrices are often fragmented and difficult .to navigate. New Hampshire is
making great progress In addressing these challenges-using the New. Hampshire .Wraparound,
program called FAST Forward. The FA^T Forward program stands tor 'Families and Syslems
Tog'ethe/'.and is designed to s^rve youth with serious emotional disturbances (SEO) arid their familiM,-

.whose needs -are not hnet 'by traditional service streams and programs, by utilizing a high fidelity
Wraparound approach which is'a definable, individualized, and slrength's-baied^planning process .that
incorporates, a child and family team and results in a unique set of services arid supports for a child
and family, with tiSe plan.dosely monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes;

.Qualifying children and youth who are Medicaid eligible, aged six (6) through twenty^ne (21).
experience difficulties in day-tc^ay life due to a diagnosis of SEO, and are at .risk of multi-agency
irivolvemenl. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be served in their
home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their immunity's school program.
Outcomes of a high'fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to: increased positive-
social.. academic, and behavioral outcomes and community conr>ectedne5S for children, youth, and

.families; decreased out.of home, school, and community place'ments-(and duration of such); increased '
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child ahd family's culture, strengths, and g.oals. This Is a-unique program In New
Hamj»hire to service the described population in this manner.

The utilization of'.high'" fidelity Wraparound with an SEO popyialion has demonstrated a
reduction In the repeat use and duration of stays for childran and youth'at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, .(his prbgrani embodies ihe values and ■ principles ot a-Systern of Care within the
Department, which.i* required to bo shown under RSA 135:F. System of-Care Law.

As staled In Exhibit A. notwilhslanding-any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no'
services shall be provided after June 30. 20lT.''and the Department shall not be liable for ar^
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from tf» state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2016-2019
blennia.-

NFl North. Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
FYoposats was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' web site from March 9, 2017
through April 10. 2017. The' Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed
and scored by a-team ot individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and.weakr^sses of the proposals. The Score Summary Is attached."
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As referenced th the Request for Proposals and In Exhlbil C-1 of this coniract, this Agreement
■ has the option to. extend for up to^two (2) additional year(s). coritingent upon satisfaciory delivery of
servibes. available fusing, agreement of the parties ar>d approval of the Governor and Council.

• Should Governor dr>d Executive Council not auihoiizo this request, families with children ar>d
youth wilh SED may have fewer services available to thern in their community artd statewide to-meet
(he chetlengeft that mental illness presents for. these children, youth. ar>d their families. There Is likely
to be on increase in out-of-community and out-of-siate. placements for these children and youth, as
weD as more frequent ar^ longer stays for theso children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.

Area served: Statewide.

■  Source of Funds: Source of Funds: Z% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, System of Card Grant, and 07% General Funds.

In the event that ihe Federal Funds become no lortger available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. .'

Respectfully submitted.

^ Y
KaijaS.Fox
Dir/ctor •

Approvedby; ^rey A/ Meyers
Commissioner

Th* */ HtchS and S«'v>rti'Ariii(OA u cOA>iM4»tiiin OAd/o*iilin it p'ot.'iditftpptHufiiiUi f*t
(iKmai m oeS'tKt htelih end itd4pi»dttct.



Now Hampshire Departmprtt of Health and Human Services

Office of'Business Operationti
.  . Contracts & Procurement Unit

•' . Summary-Scoring Sheet ' . . . \

Care Management Entity Servlcee for
FAST Fowrard

RFP NjRtie

RFP-2O18'<OBH-02-CAREM

RFP-Number

1.

2..

Bidder Ramo

LltoShere Wanegomenit Group, CLC

NFI North, inc.

3.;
0  •

re-.

5.

Pa«s/Fen.

. Maiimum

PolntB

Actuch

PoifTte

16S V ■

1M '• 159

1«5- d

165 •  ' O.

.  165 0 . •

Reytewer Names

1. Child B«h3»of3i Knn. Tech

Kenl Murpny. Oivltton of Behavn

Adele Gaflani. AdrnnistrBtor.

Bureuj ChM debavd HRh. Tech

. Ertca UngareO. Director. 8uvau of
' Child Beheviofal HUt. Coit .

' 0. AdMnistreior

2.

3.

. II. Goal

6.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT or (NPORMATiONTECHNOlOCY

27 Hmn Dr^ Concert NH QU(n

r$K 6a)-27l-]5t6 TOD Acoen: 1-eOO'7U'2M4
www j\Kgo* / doh

CtaabCoBM

;um 12,2017

A. Me)ren, Coauniuioocr
Departneoi of Heahb u>d Humn Scrvico
SCstB cf New Haapihire-
liOPleasADtScrtei
Goccotd, NH 0)301'

Deor CORUQiuioDcr Meyer):

72m tetter reprcscQti fonsBl o^ftcotion thei the Depaftment of Inforraiiioa Technology (Don)
hta approved yow egcocy'f request to eotier inio a contract'with NFI Nonb. Inc. of Cootoecaek, NH ts
described below oad rcfercaced 03 Don* No. 20184)69.

NFI North. Loc. will provide Care Maiugetoent Entrty service) for the FAST Forward
ProsruB- Tlie Sysins of Gut OroDt require) bWS to 'implement the fiocctsuy
ififreftrochoc to tupperl a Syitero of Core (SOC) for tcrvrng youth with coopln
betiAviorel hedth eoecerns. such &i e Scriouj Motional Difturbascu (SED). Under the -

- gmoi period DHHS serves as the Care Mattagetneni Entity (CME) for the FAST Forward
program. A CMS raodel b'lntaided-to cooidbate aod stresmltee (bs necessary lervices
for bmilxs a child^outh dial has aa SED.

' The amouDt of the orotract is not to euced S19*^70.00. aod shall become efTective July
1,2017 or upoo the date of Oovemor and fixxutive Couocil approval, whichever is later,
through iuoe 30,3019. ,

.A copy of this (eeer should accomp&sy the.Department of Health and Hunu.Servioes'
.aubmisiion to the Governor tnd Exxutive Council for af^roval.

SirxcrtTy, n.

A Ad

Denis Goulst

DG4af

■ Dorr 0201^069

x; firuco StDtth, FT Maaai^, DofT

'(nXMDi^f Ttthnolofiei rpdey/br Yrw Hompjhire'f romb/row*


